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MISSION

To provide the finest quality products through its skilled workforce, establishing state-of-the-art
technology and zero adverse impact on the environment.

VISION:

To be a prime yarn manufacturer in the country through maintaining the best quality and commitment.
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Letter of Transmittal

To
Hon’ble Shareholders
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission,

Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms,
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited

Subject: Annual Report-2022.

Dear Sir (s),

We are pleased to enclose herewith a copy of Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements comprising Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30" June, 2022
along with notes thereon of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited for your kind information and records.

Thanking You,

Sincerely yours,

Md. Selim Parvez LL.B, FCS
Company Secretary

N.B: The Annual Report 2022 is also available in the Company's website at: www.alhajtextilemills.com



Alhaj Textile Mills Limited
66, Dilkusha C/A, Chand Mansion (4 floor), Dhaka-1000.

NOTICE OF THE 40™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 40" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited
will be held on Tuesday, 27" December 2022 at 11.30 am. The AGM will be conducted through
transaction of the following business agenda:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Directors’ and Auditors’ Report and the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.

2. To declare Dividend for the year ended June 30, 2022.

3. To elect /re-elect Directors as per Company’s Articles of Association.

4. To approve the appointment of Independent Directors.

5. To appoint Statutory Auditors and to fix their remuneration.

6. To appoint Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors and to fix their remuneration.

By order of the Bgard
N1
" _5’/
Dated: Dhaka Md. Selim Parvez’gﬂLL.B, FCS
6™ December 2022 Company Secretary

NOTES:

= Members whose names appeared in the Members’/Depository Register on Record Date i.e.
21 Nov 2022 will be eligible to join/participate and vote in the Annual General Meeting
through the Digital Platform and to receive the dividend.

* A Member entitled to join/participate and vote in the Annual General Meeting may appoint a
proxy in his stead. A scanned copy of the duly stamped proxy form must be sent to the email
“info@alhajtextilemills.com” not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

= Pursuant to the BSEC Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated
June 20, 2018, soft copy (PDF format) of the Annual Report 2021-2022 will be sent to the
Members’ respective email addresses as available with us. The Annual Report 2021-2022
will also be available on the Company’s website at www.alhajtextilemills.com

»= The Ilink for joining the Digital Platform (audio-visual meeting) is
www.alhajtextilemills.com/agm which will also be sent to the respective Members’ email
addresses and SMS to their mobile numbers as available with us in due course of time. The
Members need to put their 16-digit Beneficial Owner (BO) ID number as proof of their
identity for log-in to the system.

= This link www.alhajtextilemills.com/agm will be opened 24 hours before the commencement
of the AGM for questions/comments and vote electronically by the members.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Chairman

Audit Committee

Mr. Khondoker Kamaluzzaman

Managing Director & CEO

Mr. Muhammad Mizanur Rahman

Directors

Dr. Muhammad Saifuddin Khan - Chairman
Mr. Md. Bakhtiar Rahman - Member

Ms. Khodeza Khatoon - Member
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Mr. Md. Zikrul Hoque - Member
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Mr. Md. Talha

Mr. Md. Abdullah Bokhari
Mr. Md. Saidul Islam

Mr. Md. Bakhtiar Rahman
Ms. Khodeza Khatoon

Mr. Md. Harunoor Rashid

Independent Directors

Professor Dr. A F M Abdul Moyeen - Chairman
Mr. Md. Bakhtiar Rahman — Member

Ms. Khodeza Khatoon — Member
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Mr. Md. Salim

Company Secretary
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FAMES & R
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ARTISAN
Chartered Accountants

Principal Bankers
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Insurance
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Bangladesh General Insurance Co. Ltd.
Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka.

E-mail: info@alhajtextilemills.com
Website: www.alhajtextilemills.com

I.K. Road, Ishwardi, Pabna.

Registered Office

66, Dilkusha C/A, Chand Mansion (4" Floor),
Dhaka-1000.
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MR. KHONDOKER KAMALUZZAMAN

Chairman

Mr. Khondoker Kamaluzzaman, aged about 66, is the Independent Director &
Chairman of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited appointed by the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC). He served as a Senior District and Session Judge in
different districts.

Mr. Kamaluzzaman born in a respectable Muslim family in village: Itna, PS. &
Upazila: Lohagora, District: Narail in 1956. He obtained his Honor’s in Bachelor of
Laws (LL.B Hon's) in 1978 and Master’s of Laws (LL.M) in 1979 from the University
of Dhaka. After that, he obtained the Membership of Bangladesh Bar Council in 1982
and became a legal practitioner. Mr. Kamaluzzaman joined Bangladesh Civil Service
(BCS) Cadre as Assistant Judge (Munsif) on July 17, 1983. Afterward, he was
promoted as Senior Assistant Judge, Joint District & Sessions Judge, Additional
District & Sessions Judge. While he was working as Deputy Solicitor/ Deputy
Secretary in Law, Ministry of Law in 2002, he was promoted as District Judge
(Jananiraopatta Tribunal) for crimes affecting public safety in Dhaka.

After that, he worked as Divisional Special Judge of Barisal, Senior District, and
Session Judge in Gopalgonj, Naogaon, and Sylhet respectively.

After retiring from Judicial Service, he became a Senior Teacher in the Department
of Law, at Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman Science and Technology
University. Before joining Alhaj Textile Mills Limited, he served as a Commissioner
for the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) from 2017 to 2021.

During his service career, he received training in judicial administration, foundation
and others. He participated in numerous pieces of training in national, and
international seminars and conferences at home and abroad.



MR. MUHAMMAD MIZANUR RAHMAN
Managing Director & CEO

MR. MD. TALHA

Director

Muhammad Mizanur Rahman is the Managing Director & CEO of the Company. He
completed his BBA from University of Wisconsin, Oshkosh, USA. After completion
of his graduation, he started his professional career in business world. To enrich his
knowledge, he has visited various countries in home and abroad in connection with
business.

Being a versatile business personality with more than 30 years of experiences, he has
established different industries. He is the Chairman of Alhaj Jute Mills Limited and
also take part in Bangladesh Recruiting Industries.

Under his strong leadership and entrepreneurial spirit, Alhaj Textile can become one
of the leading spinning mills in the Country.

Mr. Md. Talha, aged about 79, is the Director of the Company. After Completion of his
Bachelor of Commerce Degree in 1961, he started his professional life as General
Manager of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. Later in the year 1985 he co-opted as a
Director (Administration) of the said Company. In the year 1992 he became the
Managing Director of the Company. He also joined as a Director (Finance and
Administration) of Alhaj Jute Mills Limited in the year 2001 and became Chairman of
the Company since 2016. During 37 years of his directorship in Alhaj Textile Mills
Limited he played different roles in administration, production, finance etc. He has
special interest in sharing knowledge with reputed scholars in the textile areas.

Mr. Talha was the former Managing Director & CEO of Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd. and
the Senior Vice Chairman of Bangladesh Textile Mills Association & Bangladesh Jute
Mills association. He attended various seminars and symposiums on textile field in
home and abroad. He is a life Member of Anjuman-E-Mafidul Islam, Gulshan Azad
Moshjid, Red Cross & Red Crescent Society and also Human Rights Commission. He
visited many countries of the world like USA, UK, Germany, Italy, France, Japan,
China, Singapore, Hong Kong, Thailand & India.

He is widely experienced in Management to effectively run the Company both in textile
and jute sector. He gathered knowledge in line of production, marketing and
management system.




MR. MD. ABDULLAH BOKHARI

Director

MR. MD. SAIDUL ISLAM

Director

Mr. Md. Abdullah Bokhari, aged about 72, is the Director of the Company. After
Graduation, he started his professional life with business. He joined as a Director
procurement of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited in the year 1982. Later in the year 1996, he
became Chairman of the Company. During 40 years of his directorship in Alhaj Textile
Mills Limited, he played different roles like Procurement (Foreign & Local), Production
& Operation, Sales, Planning & Development, Finance etc.

Mr. Bokhari was the former Chairman of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited for two
consecutive terms. He is also the Managing Director of AB & Co. Ltd., TREC#043,
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited. He has travelled many countries of the world and visited
many industries in connection with business. He has vast experience and knowledge in
Management techniques both in Textile and Jute Industries and also knowledge about
overall production process of Spinning.

Mr. Md. Saidul Islam, aged about 68, is the Director of the Company. After
Graduation, he started his professional career with business. In the year 1996, he
joined as a Director (planning) of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. Mr. Islam visited
many countries of the world in connection with business.

Mr. Islam was the Chairman of the Purchase & Sales Committee of Alhaj Textile
Mills Limited. He was also a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee of the Company. He has vast knowledge in management
techniques both in textile and jute mills.
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MR. MD. BAKHTIAR RAHMAN

Director

Mohammed Bakhtiar Rahman, Director of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited, was born in
the year 1953. He started his business in plastic product manufacturing when he was a
college student in 1974. After completing his Bachelor degree in commerce from
Dhaka University, he started a textile business as an importer and exporter of all kinds
of textile products, dyes, and chemicals in 1977. He has transformed the plastic product
manufacturing business into Unique Plastics Industries Limited in 1985 as founder
Managing Director. He was also one of the Sponsor Director of Drug International
Limited.

He has become a member of Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. in 1980, as Stock Broker
firm Bakhtiar & Co. and transformed into Alhaj Securities & Stocks Ltd. in 2006 as
Track Holder of DSE Limited and has become the Director and founder Chairman of
the Company.

He joined as the Director of Unique Insecticides Limited, Alhaj Jute Mills Limited,
and Mahmuda Hai Chemi Limited engaged in textile chemical products
manufacturing. He is also a member of the Advisory Committee of Khawja Muzammel
Haque (R) Foundation and was a founder member of Hai Mahmuda Charitable
Society.

He has traveled to many countries like USA, Canada, most of the European countries,
and the Asian sub-continent.

He has nearly Four decades of experience in the business sector thus he has achieved
noteworthy experience in various business sectors as Textile, Jute, Dyes and
Chemicals, Stock Brokerage, Import/ Export, Purchase, and sales.
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MS. KHODEZA KHATOON

Director

MR. MD. HARUNOOR RASHID

Director

Ms. Khodeza Khatoon, is a Director of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. She is the wife
of late Md. Shuhrawardi who was the Chairman of Alhaj Jute Mills Limited and the
Director of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. She has been a key stakeholder behind the
success of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited over the past decades.

Ms. Khodeza is also the Director of Alhaj Jute Mills Limited. She is an experienced
entrepreneur with along track record. Under her strong leadership and
entrepreneurial spirit, Alhaj Textile has become one of the leading textile mills in
the Country.

Mr. Md. Harunoor Rashid is prominent business personnel in Bangladesh. With his
visionary leadership and extensive business knowledge, Alhaj Textile Mills Limited
drives ahead to provide superior quality products and services. Mr. Rashid completed
his graduation from University of Dhaka, Bangladesh. Over the past three decades,
he has gained expertise and experienced in Textile, Spinning, Plastic and Jute
Industry in Bangladesh, with successful investments in diversified industries.

Mr. Rashid is also the Managing Director of Alhaj Jute Mills Limited and the
Nominee Director of City General Insurance Co. Limited. He is moreover the
Chairman of GM Golda Hatchery Ltd. and the Managing Partner of M. Rahman &
Co.

Mr. Rashid visited many industries in home and abroad in connection of business
and gathered knowledge in management techniques to effectively run the Company.
He also gathered knowledge in modern method & technology both Textile & Jute
Industry.

12



PROFESSOR DR. A F M ABDUL MOYEEN

Independent Director

Professor Dr. A F M Abdul Moyeen is an Independent Director and the Chairman of
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited.
Currently he is the Vice Chancellor of Comilla University. Prior to taking over the
position of Vice Chancellor Dr. Moyeen was a Professor at the Department of
Management, University of Dhaka. He holds a Ph.D. in Strategic Management from
the University of Stirling, United Kingdom.

Dr. Moyeen also served as a post-doctoral fellow at Australia’s top-ranking university-
Australian National University (ANU). Dr. Moyeen has taught business strategy for
over 31 years in various universities including University of Dhaka, RMIT University,
and Federation University Australia. Outside academia, he was extensively engaged as
technical advisor, consultant, and manager in a multi-donor (The World Bank, UKAi1d,
SIDA, and Swiss Agency for Development and Corporation) funded entrepreneurship
promotion project in Bangladesh. He has published articles on business strategy,
entrepreneurship, corporate social responsibility, and sustainable development goals in
national and international journals, research-based books, and conference proceedings.

DR. MUHAMMAD SAIFUDDIN KHAN

Independent Director

Dr. Muhammad Saifuddin Khan has been appointed as an Independent Director of
Alhaj Textile Mills Limited on January 28, 2021. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. Currently, Dr. Khan is working as an
Associate Professor of Finance in the Department of Finance, University of Dhaka,
Bangladesh. During his long & esteemed 16 years teaching career he taught at the
University of Dhaka, Bangladesh; University of Sydney, Australia; University of
Technology Sydney, Australia, and University of Western Sydney, Australia. His
teaching areas are Corporate Finance, Financial Management, Portfolio Management,
Investment Analysis, Financial Markets & Institutions, Commercial Bank
Management, Management of Financial Institutions, Financial Statement & Analysis
and Valuation, etc. His research interest focuses on Financial Institutions, Banking
Regulation, Corporate Finance, Capital Markets, and Corporate Governance. Dr.
Khan started his career in Premier Bank Ltd. as Management Trainee Officer in
2004. Dr. Khan joined as a Lecturer in the Department of Finance, University of
Dhaka in 2006. So far, he has 17 research articles published in peer-reviewed
national and international indexed journals. He has received many national &
international awards, scholarships, and research grants. Currently, Dr. Khan is
working as Placement Director at the Department of Finance, University of Dhaka.
Currently, he is also working as an Independent Director of Dhaka Regency Hotel &
13



Resort Ltd., appointed by the High Court Division, Supreme Court of Bangladesh. Dr.
Khan is also working as Independent Director of Bangladesh Welding Electrodes Ltd.
and FAS Finance & Investment Limited appointed by the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Dr. Khan completed his B.B.A. & M.B.A. in Finance from the Department of Finance,
University of Dhaka. He completed Master of Commerce in Finance from the
University of Melbourne, Australia. Later on, Dr. Khan earned his Ph.D. in Finance
from the University of Technology Sydney, Australia. He is also an Ad hoc Reviewer
for Journal of Financial Stability, Review of Accounting Studies, Managerial Finance,
North American Journal of Economics and Finance and Journal of Banking &
Financial Services. Dr. Khan is an Editorial Board Member of the International
Journal of Accounting & Finance Review and the Indian Journal of Finance and
Banking.

MR. MD. ZIKRUL HOQUE

Independent Director

Mr. Md. Zikrul Hoque has been appointed as a Director of Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd.
on 4 September 2022. Immediate before he played role as an Independent Director
of Fareast Islami Life Insurance Company Limited. Prior to this, he held the position
of Deputy Managing Director (DMD) of Janata Bank Limited.

As a professional Mr. Hoque has 34 years of empirical working experiences in the
state owned bank, Janata Bank LTD with the position of Deputy Managing Director
(DMD), General Manager (GM), Deputy General Manager (DGM), Assistant
General Manager (AGM), Manager, and so on.

Mr. Hoque, son of Mogbul Hossain and Jarina Begum has come from a decent
Muslim family of Parbotipur Upazila, district of Dinajpur, Bangladesh. He was born
on 13 February 1962. He graduated from Bangladesh Agricultural University,
Mymensingh (BAU) with BSc Honors in Agricultural Engineering in 1983. Then
he obtained MBA degree in Finance from International Islamic University,
Chittagong (IIU) in 2010. Rather he has been decorated himself with numerous
professional degrees, trainings and skills time to time from home and abroad.

Throughout his magnificent journey in the banking industry, Mr. Hoque played an
innovative role in the ground of direction, policy making & regulation, monitoring,
and implementation with extensive sagacity. He developed his expertise in the
inauguration of banking online/offline core software to strengthen faster way of
digital and mobile banking. In the field of “Loans & Advances”, he has gathered 15
years of pragmatic deftness with the position of Divisional Head, Zonal/Area Head
and Branch Manager. He had an active involvement in the process of the
implementation of various creative programs of the government including “Annual
Performance Agreement (APA)”, and” National Integrity Strategy (NIS)”. As a
Trainer, Team Coordinator, and Speaker, he has a strong competence to demonstrate
himself. In the field of innovation and marketing of loans, Mr. Hoque has a great
reputation for inaugurating of loan product for “Earthworm Fertilizer Production™.
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Mr. Hoque has been awarded as well as honored time to time for his outstanding
excellences. He is also a Diplomaed Associates of the Institute of Bankers
Bangladesh. To implement the vision of the Honourable Prime Minster of
Bangladesh, Janonettri Sheikh Hasina and the Father of Nation of Bangladesh,
Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman to make Bangladesh hunger and poverty
free, Mr. Hoque keeps his utmost contribution in the field of Agricultural Economy
of Bangladesh to strengthen the process of the innovation of the agricultural
products. To enrich himself with extensive knowledge, wisdom and experiences,
Mr. Hoque participated in many seminars, symposiums, training programs and
workshops in Singapore, Malaysia, Philippines.

In addition, Mr. Hoque is a man of firm ethics and moral values with having strong
analytical ability, capacity in risk management and problem solving.

MR. MD. SALIM

Independent Director

Mr. Md. Salim is appointed as an Independent Director of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited
by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). He is also appointed
as an Independent Director of FAS Finance & Investment Limited by Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). He is also nominated Director of FAS
Capital Management Ltd. He has completed B.Com (Hon’s) Finance in 1993 and
M.Com Banking in 1995 from Dhaka University. He is also Gold Medalist in Banking
for his academic excellence. He has 15 years of teaching experience from Dhaka
University, Under Banking & Insurance Department. He has also 5 years of teaching
experience from Jagannath University under Management. Information and
Accounting System Department. He has also completed a professional degree
Banking Diploma (part I & II). Written many articles on Banking in nationally and
internationally reputed Journals and publications. He has 20 years of banking
experience also. Lastly, he was Deputy Managing Director (DMD) of a State Owned
Bank. Currently, he is also pursuing a Doctorate of Business Administration under
the Business Faculty, University of Dhaka. Presently Mr. Md. Salim is serving as a
senior Faculty Member of Bangladesh Academy for Securities Markets (Academic
Wing of BSEC).
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

MR. MD. SELIM PARVEZ LL.B, FCS

Company Secretary

Mr. Md. Selim Parvez LL.B, FCS is the Company Secretary of Alhaj Textile Mills
Limited. He is a Fellow Chartered Secretary of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of
Bangladesh (ICSB). He completed his Post Graduate Diploma in Human Resource
Management (PGDHRM) from the Bangladesh Institute of Management (BIM) & also
enriched himself by successfully completing Bachelor of Laws (LL.B) from the
National University. He has participated in various national & international
conferences, trainings & CPD programs.

Prior to that, Mr. Parvez served in Electro Group as the Company Secretary and also
worked in different listed & non-listed Manufacturing Companies. During his long
career, he has worked in corporate governance, financial management, social
compliance, stakeholder relations, regulatory management, and public communications
among other areas. He visited various countries to flourish his knowledge & insinuating
new ideas. He has engaged himself in numerous social and philanthropic activities.

MR. MD. JALAL UDDIN
Chief Financial Officer (Acting)

Mr. Md. Jalal Uddin is the Chief Financial Officer (acting) of the Company. He is a
part qualified Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh (ICAB) & M. Com in Accounting from the National University. He has 12
years’ experience in the field of Accounts, Finance, Taxation & Issue Management. He
is in the Company since 2011.
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MR. KHALILUR RAHMAN

Head of Internal Audit and Compliance

Mr. Khalilur Rahman completed his Master’s degree in Accounting from the National
University. He is a part qualified Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB).

Mr. Khalilur has experienced more than 14 years in the field of Costing, MIS,
Accounts, Finance, Taxation, Vat, Internal audit, issue management. He is working in
the Company since 2022.

MR. AKM AZHARUL ISLAM
Deputy General Manager (Admin)

Mr. AKM Azharul Islam, aged about 70 is the Deputy General Manager (Admin) of
the Company. He completed his Bachelors of Commerce Degree under the Rajshahi
University in the year 1972. After Graduation he joined as an Accountant at Alhaj
Textile Mills Limited.Now he is the Deputy General Manager (Administration) of the
Company. He looks after administration including labor related issues of the
Company. He started his career as a Management Executive in the year 2007.

MR. MD. AKHTARUZZAMAN

Deputy General Manager
(Maintenance & Production)

Mr. Md. Akhtaruzzaman, aged about 49, Deputy General Manager (Maintenance
& Production) of the Company. He has completed his Diploma in Engineering
(Mech.) from Bangladesh Technical Education Board, Dhaka in the year 1992. He
completed BSC in Textile Engineers & Technology (Major Yarn) in the year 2006
from (Distance) Tuition provide Edward University of USA.

Mr. Akhtaruzzaman started his service career from 1993 with Alhaj Textile Mills
Limited. During his long service period, he acquired vast knowledge over
Technical, Production Technology and Electronic works also. He started his carrier
as a Management Executive in the year 2010. For exploring his knowledge he
attended many training programs on making yarn in abroad.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholders,

Assalamu'alaikum,

We have the pleasure to welcome you at the 40" Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited. It also gives me immense pleasure
to place before you the Annual Report along with the Audited Financial
Statements, Auditors' Report and Directors' Report thereon for the year
ended on 30™ June, 2022.

You are aware that Alhaj Textile Mills Limited, due to various reasons,
remained closed for more than two years. Under the leadership of the
reconstituted Board of Directors, the mill has resumed its operation since
mid-June of 2021 and since then it is running smoothly. Sincere efforts are
also underway to comply with the various legal requirements of a listed

company as well as to settle loan related disputes amicably with the lender
bank.

I would like to inform you that during the year 2021-22 the Company sales
revenue is Tk. 351 million which is 130.54% higher than that of 2020-2021
i.e. Tk. 199 million. The net profit after tax in 2021-22 increased by
252.17% compared to that of 2020-21.

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank all concerned - our valued
customers for their confidence in our products, the employees for their
tireless efforts, the suppliers for their quality cotton, spare parts, and
electrical goods, honorable shareholders for their continuous support and
interest for the welfare of the Company, the Regulatory Bodies including
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), the Dhaka Stock
Exchanges (DSE), the Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL), the
Bankers, and the Insurance Companies for their cooperation and support to
our Company. We expect that the same support from all stakeholders would
continue in the coming days.

With best wishes

e Y
SV AT

Khondoker Kamaluzzaman
Chairman of the Board
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MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO

Dear Shareholders,

Assalamu'alaikum,

It is my greatest pleasure that I welcome you on behalf of the Board of
Directors to the 40" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of your Company
and present before you the Annual Report for the year 2021-22 containing
Directors' Report and Audited Financial Statements for your perusal. I hope
you all have received and studied the Annual Report. I would like to
summarize the highlights for your kind attention and consideration.

It would reveal that the company’s turnover and GP marginally increased
by 130.54% and 596.66% in comparison with previous year due to
increased sales volume.

I would like to inform you all of the factors such as policy support, energy
& transport costs, natural disasters, social violence and international market
situation which can be nationally, internationally and diplomatically
handled. You can depend on our resilience to make the costs competitive
for our benefit and investments being highly profitable.

I would like to take this opportunity on behalf of the Board of Directors
and express my most sincere admiration to all our valued customers for
their confidence in our products. Also, to the employees for their fearless
efforts, to the suppliers for their raw quality materials and to the honorable
shareholders for their continuous support for the betterment of the
company. I earnestly hope our combined efforts will result in attaining
success for the company and benefits for all its stakeholders.

With best wishes for all of you

Fbbrrom

Muhammad Mizanur Rahman
Managing Director & CEO
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Report of the Audit Committee
FOR THE YEAR 2021-2022

The Audit Committee consists of the following persons:

Dr. Muhammad Saifuddin Khan, Independent Director Chairman
Mr. Md. Bakhtiar Rahman, Director Member
Ms. Khodeza Khatoon, Director Member
Mr. Md. Harunoor Rashid, Director Member
Mr. Md. Zikrul Hoque, Independent Director Member
Mr. Md. Selim Parvez LL.B, FCS Secretary

The Scope of the Audit Committee was defined as under:

a)
b)

¢)

d)
e)

g)

h)

)

k)

D

Oversee the financial reporting process.

Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles.

Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately resourced,
including approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance plan and review of the Internal Audit
and Compliance Report

Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.

Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption.

Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

Review along with the management, the quarterly and half-yearly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval.

Review the adequacy of the internal audit function.

Review the Management's discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report
Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management.

Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory
auditors.

Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise
deployed, and time required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of the external
auditors.

Review and consider the report of internal auditors and statutory auditors' observations on
internal control.

m) Any other requirement assigned by the Board of Directors.
Activities carried out during the year:

During the financial year ended 30™ June 2022 the Committee held 04 (four) meetings and the
members were present in the committee meeting as follows:

Independent Director

Meetings & Attendance
Audit Committee Audit
Meetings held Committee
Name during the year Meetings Remarks
2021-2022 attendence
Dr. Muhammad Saifuddin Khan, 4 4
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Mr. Prof. Mamtaz Uddin Ahmed FCMA,
Independent Director

Resigned from the Board and Audit
4 4 Committee approved by the 454" Board
Meeting held on 29-06-2022

Mr. Md. Bakhtiar Rahman, Director

Mr. Md. Saidul Islam, Director

Ms. Khodeza Khatoon, Director

4 1 Appointed by the 451" Board Meeting
held on 27-01-2022

Proceedings of the Audit Committee Meetings were reported timely and regularly to the Board of
Directors. During the year, the Committee performed amongst others, the following key functions:

1.

2.

SIS S

The Committee reviewed the integrity of the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial
statements and recommended to the Board for consideration.

The Committee had overseen, reviewed and approved the procedure and task of the internal
audit, financial report preparation and the external audit reports.

The Committee reviewed the Audit Plan for the year 2021-2022.

The Committee reviewed the performance and appointment of external auditors.

The Committee reviewed related party transactions.

The Committee reviewed the Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness
issued by statutory auditors.

The Committee found adequate arrangement to present a true and fair view of the activities
and the financial status of the Company and didn't find any material deviation, discrepancies
or any adverse finding/observation in the area of reporting.

REPORTING BY AUDIT COMMITTEE TO THE BOARD:

The Committee regularly reports on its work to the Board. The report includes a summary of the
matters addressed in the meeting by the members present and the measures undertaken by the
committee.

WM

Dr. Muhammad Saifuddin Khan
Chairman

Audit Committee

27" October 2022
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Annexure-2

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

In compliance with the Commission's Notification on Corporate Governance Code No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/ 2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 3, 2018, the Board of Directors of Alhaj
Textile Mills Limited in its 43 1% Board Meeting held on August 08, 2018 constituted the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee ("NRC").

Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is now composed of the following members:

Prof. Dr. A F M Abdul Moyeen Independent Director Chairman
Mr. Md. Bahktiar Rahman Director Member
Ms. Khodeza Khatoon Director Member
Mr. Md. Harunoor Rashid Director Member
Mr. Md. Salim Independent Director Member

Members of the Senior Management team will also attend the meetings by invitation of the Chairman
only as and when necessary. The Company Secretary functions as the Secretary of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.

Meeting

During the year ended 30" June 2022 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held 01 meeting.
Proceedings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting was reported to the Board of
Directors.

Role of the NRC
(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to the shareholders;

(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommendation
to the Board:
(1) formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and. recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, top level executive, considering the following:

(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully;

(b)  the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

(©) remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

(i)  devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into consideration age, gender,
experience, ethnicity, educational background and nationality;
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(iii))  identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed
in top level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and
recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

(iv)  formulating the criteria for evaluation of the performance of independent directors
and the Board;

(v) identifying the company's needs for employees at different levels and determine their
selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria; and

(vi)  developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company's human resources
and training policies;

(©) The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the evaluation
criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual report.

Nomination of Director/Managing Director & CEO

During the year Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited in
its 5™ Meeting, dated March 14, 2022 recommended Mr. Muhammad Mizanur Rahman for being
Managing Director & CEO of the Company.

Proposal for re-election of Directors

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) proposed Mr. Md. Bakhtiar Rahman and Ms.
Khodeza Khatoon, Directors of the Company for retirement by rotation and for re-election (being
eligible) by the shareholders in this upcoming Annual General Meeting.

Appointment of Independent Directors

Appointed Mr. Khondoker Kamaluzzaman, Independent Director & Chairman of the Company as
per BSEC letter no. BSEC/SRMIC/94-45/451, dated 20 October 2022 and Mr. Md. Zikrul Hoque &
Mr. Md. Salim as the Independent Directors of the Company as per BSEC letter no. BSEC/SRMIC/94-
45/300, dated 13 July 2022 instead of Dr. Melita Mehjabeen in accordance with condition No. 01 of
Directive No: SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/15/ Admin/112 10 December 2020 and condition (a) of
Directive No. BSEC/SRMIC/94-95/295 dated 29 December 2020.

Acknowledgment

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expresses its sincere thanks to the Chairman and
Members of the Board and Management for their support in carrying out the duties and
responsibilities.

On behalf of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

/-%743”

Professor Dr. A F M Abdul Moyeen
Chairman

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
27" October 2022
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Annexure-3

Dated: 30-10-2022
Management Assertion Certificate

Declaration by Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer

The Board of Directors

Alhaj Textile Mills Limited

66, Dilkusha Commercial Area (4™ Floor)
Dhaka-1000

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30" June 2022.

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5) (xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated 3 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities
and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statement of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited for the year ended on 30™ June 2022 have
been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there
from has been adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and subtance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably
and fairly presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of
internal control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainly related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that: -

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30" June’2022 and that to
the best of our knowledge and belief:

e these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statement that might be misleading;
e these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
(ii)  There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the
company’s Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

N S =)

Muhammad Mizanur Rahman Md. Jalal Uddin
Managing Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer (c.c)

36



o R d
=i s Cblerrteredd « Fhmoentants

e o T

REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF

ALHA] TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
ON COMPLIANCE ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code of ALHAJ TEXTILE
MILLS LIMITED for the year ended on 30 June, 2022, This Code relates to the Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207 /Admin/80 dated 37 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Qur
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the
Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of
the Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (| ICSB) in so far
as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required,
and after due scrutiny and verification thereck, we report that, in our apinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as
stipulated in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the
Commission except as stated in the remarks column of the status of Corporate
Governance Code.

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh
(1CSB) as required by this Cade,

¢} Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the
Companies Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws: and

d) The Governance of the company is average,

Partner
ARTISAN-Chartered Accountants

Place: Dhaka
Dated: 23rd November, 2022,

Sonargaon Terrace (2nd floor), House # 52, Road # 13/C, sim.reza@yahoo.com -
_ @ Block # E, Banani, Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh, src.ca2012@yahoo.com
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(Report under Condition No. 9.00)

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by
BSEC’s Notification no. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207 /Admin/80
Dated 3rd June 2018 on Corporate Governance

Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status(Put
in the appropriate
column)

Remarks
(if any)

Not

Complied Complied

(1)

Board of Directors

Board's Size

The total number of members of a company’s
Board of Directors hereinafter referred to as
“Board”) shall not be less than 5 (five) and more
than 20 (twenty).

The Board of Alhaj Textile Mills
Limited is comprised of 9
(Nine) Directors including 5
(Five) Independent Directors.

1(2)(a)

Independent Directors

All Companies shall have effective
representation of independent directors on
their Boards, so that the Board, as a group,
includes core competencies considered
relevant in the context of each company the
follow: At least one-fifth (1/5) of the total
number of directors in the company’s Board
shall be independent directors; any fraction
shall be considered to the next integer or whole
number for calculating number of independent
director(s);

There are five Independent
Directors in Alhaj Textile Mills
Limited’s Board, namely: Mr.
Khondoker Kamaluzzaman,
Professor Dr. A F M Abdul
Moyeen, Dr.  Muhammad
Saifuddin Khan, Mr. Md Zikrul
Hoque, Mr. Md. Salim.

1(2)(b) (D

For the purpose of this clause “Independent
Director” means a director who either does not
hold any share in the company or holds less
than one percent (1%) shares of the total paid-
up shares of the company.

Directors
their

The Independent
have declared
compliances.

1(2)(b) (i)

Who is not a sponsor of the company or is not
connected with the company’s any sponsor
or director or nominated director or
shareholder of the company or any of its
associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and
parents or holding entities who holds one
percent (1%) or more shares of the total
paid-up shares of the company on the basis of
family relationship and his or her family
members also shall not hold above
mentioned shares in the company.

Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father,
mother, brother, sister, son-in-law and
daughter-in-law shall be considered as family
members.

1(2)(b) (iii)

Who has not been an executive of the Company
in immediately preceding 2 (two) financial
years.

1(2)(b) (iv)

Who does not have any other relationship,
whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the
company or its  subsidiary/associated
companies?

1(2)(b) (V)

Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right
Entitlement Certificate) holder, director or
officer of any stock exchange;

1(2)(b) (v)

Who is not a shareholder, director excepting
independent director or officer of any member
or TREC holder of stock exchange or an
intermediary of the capital market;

1(2)(b) (vii)

Who is not a partner or an executive or was not
a partner or an executive during the preceding
3 (three) years of the concerned company’s
statutory audit firm or audit firm engaged in
internal audit services or audit firm conducting
special audit or professional certifying
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status(Put
4y in the appropriate
column)

Remarks
(if any)

compliance of this Code;

1(2)(b) (viii)

Who is not Independent Director in more than
5 (five) listed companies;

1(2)(b) (ix)

Who has not been convicted by a court of
competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in
payment of any loan or any advance to a bank
or a Non-Bank Financial Institution (NBFI);
and

1(2)(b) ()

Who has not been convicted for a criminal
offence involving moral turpitude;

1(2) (9)

The independent director(s) shall be
appointed by the Board and approved by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting
(AGM);

Mr. Khondoker Kamaluzzaman,
Mr. Md Zikrul Hoque, Mr. Md.
Salim, Independent Directors
have been appointed by BSEC.

1(2)(d)

The post of independent director(s) cannot
remain vacant for more than 90(ninety) days;
and

There was no vacancy in the
position of Independent
Directors during the period.

1(2)(e)

The tenure of office of an independent director
shall be for a period of 3(three) years, which
may be extended for 1(one) tenure only;
Provided that a former independent director
may be considered for reappointment for
another tenure after a time gap of one tenure,
i.e., three years from his or her completion of
consecutive two tenures [i.e. six years]:
Provided further that the independent director
shall not be subject to retirement by rotation as
per TEISE T, 558 (S558 WA St Ji: WizA)
Companies Act 1994)

Explanation: For the purpose of counting
tenure or term of independent director, any
partial term of tenure shall be deemed to be a
full tenure.

Will be followed

1(3)(a)

Qualification of Independent Director
Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable
individual with integrity who is able to ensure
compliance with financial laws, regulatory
requirements and corporate laws and can
make meaningful contribution to business;

The qualification and
background of Independent
Directors Justify ability as such.

1(3)(b) (1)

Independent director shall have following
qualifications:

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or
director of an unlisted company having
minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million
or any listed company or a member of any
national or international chamber of
commerce or business association; or

Independent  Directors
former govt. officials and
University = Teachers have
knowledge on Business,
economics, finance and law etc.
possessing more than 12
(Twelve) years of experience.

are

1(3)(b) (i)

Corporate Leader who is or was a top-level
executive not lower than Chief Executive
Officer or Managing Director or Deputy
Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or
Head of Finance or Accounts or Company
Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a
candidate with equivalent position of an
unlisted company having minimum paid up
capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a listed
company; or

Explanation: Top level executive includes
Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
Officer (CEO), Additional or Deputy Managing
Director (AMD or DMD), Chief Operating
Officer (COO0), Chief Financial Officer (CFO),

Not applicable
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status(Put
\/ in the appropriate
column)

Remarks
(if any)

Company Secretary (CS), Head of Internal
Audit and Compliance (HIAC), Head of
Administration and Human Resources of
equivalent positions and same level or ranked
or salaried officials of the Company.

1(3)(b) (iii)

Former official of government or statutory or
autonomous or regulatory body in the position
not below 5th Grade of the national pay scale,
who has at least educational background of
bachelor degree in economics or commerce or
business or law; or

Mr. Khondoker Kamaluzzaman is|
a Former Senior District and
Session Judge in different districts,

1(3)(b) (iv)

University Teacher who has educational
background in Economics or Commerce or
Business Studies or Law; or

Prof. Dr. A F M Abdul Moyeen is
the Vice Chancellor of Comilla
University and Dr. Muhammad
Saifuddin Khan is the Associate
Prof. of the University of Dhaka.

1(3)(b) (v)

Professional who is or was an advocate
practicing at least in the High Court Division of
Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered
Accountant or Cost and Management
Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or
Chartered Certified Accountant or Certified
Public Accountant or Chartered Management
Accountant or Chartered Secretary or
equivalent qualification;

1(3)(9)

The independent director shall have atleast 10
(ten) years of experiences in any field
mentioned in clause (b);

1(3)(d)

In special cases, the above qualifications or
experiences may be relaxed subject to prior
approval of the Commission;

Not Applicable

1(4)(a)

Duality of Chairperson of the Board of
Directors and Managing Director or Chief
Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairperson of the Board
and the Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of the company shall
be filled by different individuals;

Chairman of the Board and CEO
are different individuals.

1(4)(b)

The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of a listed company
shall not hold the same position in another
listed company;

CEO does not hold the same
position in another company.

1(4)(c)

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected
from among the non-executive directors of the
company;

Applied

1(4)(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles
and responsibilities of the Chairperson and the
Managing Director and/or Chief Executive
Officer;

1(4)(e)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board,
the remaining members may elect one of
themselves from non-executive directors as
Chairperson for that particular Board’s
meeting; the reason of absence of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the
minutes.

Applied

1(5)(@)

The Directors’ Report to Shareholders

The Board of the company shall include the
following additional statements or disclosures
in the Directors’ Report prepared under
section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 (Act
No. XVIII of 1994) An industry outlook and
possible future developments in the industry.

The Directors Report Complies
with the guidelines.

1(5)(ii)

The Segment-wise or product-wise
performance

Do
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status(Put
\/ in the appropriate
column)

Remarks
(if any)

performance

1(5)(iii)

Risks and concerns including internal and
external risk factors, threat to sustainability
and negative impact on environment, if any;

Do

1(5)(iv)

A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit
Margin and Net Profit Margin where
applicable;

Do

1(5)(v)

A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary
activities and their implications (gain or loss);

not applicable

1(5)(vi)

A detailed discussion on related party
transactions along with a statement showing
amount, nature of related party, nature of
transactions and basis of transactions of all
related party transactions;

Financial statement note no.36

1(5)(vii)

A statement of utilization of proceeds raised
through public issues, rights issues and/or any
other instruments;

Company does not raise any public|
issues, rights issues and/or any|
other instruments during the year,

1(5) (viii)

IAn  explanation if the financial results
deteriorate after the company goes for Initial
Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering
(RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc.;

Do

1(5)(ix)

IAn explanation on any significant variance that
occurs between Quarterly Financial
erformances and Annual Financial Statements;

1(5)()

/A statement of remuneration paid to the
directors including independent directors;

Included in the Accounts note no

36B

1(5)(xi)

A statement that the financial statements
prepared by the management of the issuer
company present fairly its state of affairs, the
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in

equity;

The Directors report complied
with the guidelines.

1(5)(xii)

IA statement that proper books of account of the
issuer company have been maintained;

Do

1(5) (xiii)

A statement that appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently applied in
preparation of the financial statements and that
the accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment;

Do

1(5)(xiv)

A statement that International Accounting
Standards (IAS) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in
Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation
of the financial statements and any departure
there from has been adequately disclosed;

1(5)(xv)

IA statement that the system of internal control is
sound in design and has been effectively|
implemented and monitored;

1(5)(xvi)

A statement that minority shareholders have
been protected from abusive actions by, or in the
interest of, controlling shareholders acting either
directly or indirectly and have effective means of]
redress

Applied

1(5)(xvii)

A statement that there is no significant doubt]
upon the issuer company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, if the issuer company is not
considered to be a going concern, the fact along
iwith reasons there of shall be disclosed;

1(5)(xviii)

IAn explanation that significant deviations from
the last year’s operating results of the issuer
company shall be highlighted and the reasons
thereof shall be explained;

1(5)(xix)

A statement where key operating and financial

data of at least preceding 5 (five)years shall be

Do
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status(Put
in the appropriate
column)

Remarks
(if any)

1(5)(xx)

IAn explanation on the reasons if the issuer
company has not declared dividend(cash or
stock) for the year;

Not
Applicable

1(5)(xxi)

Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus|
share or stock dividend has been or shall be
declared as interim dividend;

Not
Applicable

1(5)(xxii)

The total number of Board meetings held during
the year and attendance by each director.

v

Stated in the annexure on to the|
directors report.

1(5)(xxiii)(a)

A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing
the aggregate number of shares (along with name-|
wise details where stated below) held by: -
Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companiesand
other related parties (name wise details)

The Board of Directors are not
holding at least 30% of its share.

1(5) (xxiii) (b)

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company]|
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of]
Internal Audit and Compliance and their spouses
and minor children (name-wise details);

Do

1(5)(xxiii)(c)

Executives; and

1(5) (xxiii) (d)

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more|
voting interest in the company (name-wise
details);

Explanation: For the purpose of this clause, the
expression ‘executive’ means top 5 (Five)
salaried employees of the company, other than
the Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and head of|
Internal Audit and Compliance.

None

There is none those are holding
10% or more votes.

1(5)(xxiv) (a)

In case of the appointment or reappointment of a
director, a disclosure on the following information
to the shareholders: -

A brief resume of the director

Stated in the directors report.

1(5)(xxiv)( b)

Nature of his/her expertise in specific functional
areas and

Do

1(5)(xxiv) (c)

Names of companies in which the person also
holds the directorship and the membership of]
committees of the board.

Do

1(5)(xxv) (a)

A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by
CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the|
company’s position and operations along with q
brief discussion of changes in the financial
lstatements, among others, focusing on:
accounting policies and estimation
preparation of financial statements;

for

1(5)(xxv) (b)

changes in accounting policies and estimation, if]
any, clearly describing the effect on financial
performance or results and financial position as
well as cash flows in absolute figure for such
changes;

not
Applicable

1(5)(xxv) ()

comparative analysis (including effects of]

inflation) of financial performance or results and

financial position as well as cash flows for current]

financial year with immediate preceding five|
ears explaining reasons thereof;

Stated in the audited accounts of|
the report.

1(5) ) (@)

compare such financial performance or results
and financial position as well as cash flows with
the peer industry scenario;

1(5)(xxv)(e)

briefly explain the financial and economic
scenario of the country and the globe;

1(5)(xxv) ()

risks and concerns issues related to the financial
statements, explaining such risk and concerns

mitigation plan of the company; and
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1(5)(xxv) (8)

future plan or projection or forecast for]
company’s operation, performance and financial
position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual
position shall be explained to the shareholders in|
the next AGM;

1(5)(xxvi)

Declaration or certification by the CEO and the
CFO to the Board as required under condition No.
3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A; and

1(5) (xxvii)

The report as well as certificate regarding
compliance of conditions of this Code as required
under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as per]
lAnnexure-B and Annexure-C

1(6)

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The company shall conduct its Board meetings
and record the minutes of the meetings as well as
keep required books and records in line with the
provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of|
Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so
far as those standards are not inconsistent with
any condition of this Code.

Applied

1(7)(a)

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other|
IBoard members and Chief Executive Officer
The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based|
on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) at condition No.
6, for the Chairperson of the Board, other board
members and Chief Executive Officer of the
company;

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) has been
formed.

1(7)(b)

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC|
shall be posted on the website of the company|
including, among others, prudent conduct and
behavior; confidentiality; conflict of interest;
compliance with laws, rules and regulations;
prohibition of insider trading; relationship with
environment, employees, customers and
suppliers; and independency.

Complied

2(a)

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary
Company. -

Provisions relating to the composition of the|
Board of the holding company shall be made
applicable to the composition of the Board of the
subsidiary company;

Not
Applicable

2(b)

At least 1 (one) independent director on the
Board of the holding company shall be a director|
on the Board of the subsidiary company;

Not
Applicable

20

The minutes of the Board meeting of the
subsidiary company shall be placed for review at|
the following Board meeting of the holding
company;

Not
Applicable

2 (d)

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of
the holding company shall state that they have|
reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company|
also;

Not
Applicable

2(e)

The Audit Committee of the holding company|
shall also review the financial statements, in
particular the investments made by the
subsidiary company.

Not
Applicable

3(1)(a)

Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer
(CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and
Company Secretary (CS). -

Appointment

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director
(MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), a Company

Complied with the guideline
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Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and
a Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC);

3(1)(b)

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Company]|
Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC)
shall be filled by different individuals;

N

Md. Md. Khalilur Rahman is the
Head of the Audit Department.

3(1)(c)

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed|
company shall not hold any executive position in
any other company at the same time;

Not
Applicable

Does not hold any executive
position in any other company at|
the same time;

3(1)(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles,
responsibilities and duties of the CFO, the HIAC
and the CS;

Y

3(1)(e)

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be|
removed from their position without approval of|
the Board as well as immediate dissemination to
the Commission and stock exchange(s).

Will be followed

3(2)

Requirement to attend the Board Meetings
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company|
shall attend the meetings of the Board: Provided
that the CS, CFO and/or the HIAC shall not attend|
such part of a meeting of the Board which
involves consideration of an agenda item relating
to their personal matters.

In Practice

3(3)()

IDuties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief
IExecutive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial
Officer (CFO)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board
that they have reviewed financial statements for
the year and that to the best of their knowledge
and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any]
materially untrue statement or omit any|
material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading; and

ii. these statements together present a true
and fair view of the company’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting|
standards and applicable laws;

CEO and CFO certified to the
Board during finalization of|
Financial Statement which is
stated in the “Directors’
declaration as to financial
statements in the Directors’
Report.”

3(3)(b)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that|
there are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no
transactions entered into by the company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in
violation of the code of conduct for the company’s
Board or its members;

Do

3(3)(c)

The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall
be disclosed in the Annual Report.

Do

4.0

IBoard of Directors’ Committee -

For ensuring good governance in the company, the
Board shall have at least following sub-|
committees:

iii. Audit Committee; and

iv. Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Company have the following
sub committees
i Audit Committee.
ii. Nomination and
Remuneration
committee

5(1)(a)

Audit Committee

Responsibility to the Board of Directors.

The company shall have an Audit Committee as a|
sub-committee of the Board;

In Practice

5(1)(b)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in|
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company|
and in ensuring a good monitoring system within|
the business;

In Practice

5(1)(c)

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the
Board; the duties of the Audit Committee shall
be clearly set forth in writing.

In Practice
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5(2)(a)

Constitution of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall be composed of at]
least 3 (three)members;

The  Audit Committee is|
composed with 5 (five) members.

5(2)(b)

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit]
Committee who shall benon-executive directors
of the company excepting Chairperson of the
Board and shall include at least 1 (one)
independent director;

The members of the Audit
Committee are appointed by the
board who are Directors and
which  includes 2 (two)
Independent Directors.

5(2)(c)

IAll members of the audit committee should be
“financially literate” and at least 1 (one) member]
shall have accounting or related financial
management background and 10 (ten) years of]
such experience;

Explanation: The term ‘financially literate’
means the ability to read and understand the
financial statements like statement of financial
position, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and cash flows|
statement and a person will be considered to
have accounting or related financial management
expertise if he or she possesses professional
qualification or Accounting or Finance graduate
with at least 12 (twelve) years of corporate
management or professional experiences.

Based on the academic
qualification and professional
experiences, the Board reviewed
and considered that all the
existing members of the Audit]

Committee are  “Financially|
Literate” and they have ‘Related
Financial Management
experience” as per BSE(C

notification.

5(2)(d)

When the term of service of any Committee|
member expires or there is any circumstance
causing any Committee member to be unable to
hold office before expiration of the term of|
service, thus making the number of the
Committee members to be lower than the
prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the
Board shall appoint the new Committee member
to fill up the vacancy immediately or not later
than 1 (one) month from the date of vacancy in
the Committee to ensure continuity of the|
performance of work of the Audit Committee;

In practice

5(2)(e)

The company secretary shall act as the secretary|
of the Committee;

In practice

5(2)(f)

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting
shall not constitute without at least 1 (one)
independent director.

In practice

5(3)()

Chairman of the Audit Committee

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the
lAudit Committee to be Chairperson of the Audit
Committee, who shall be an independent
director;

The members of the Audit
Committee are appointed by the|
board who are Directors and
which includes 2 (two)
Independent Directors.

5(3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit]
Committee, the remaining members may elect]
one of themselves as Chairperson for that]
particular meeting, in that case there shall be no
problem of constituting a quorum as required
under condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly|
recorded in the minutes.

Will follow

5(3)(c)

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain|
present in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).
Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the
)Audit Committee, any other member from the
IAudit Committee shall be selected to be present]
in the annual general meeting (AGM) and reason|
for absence of the Chairperson of the Audit]
Committee shall be recorded in the minutes of the
IAGM.

In Practice

5(4)()

Meeting of the Audit Committee

4 (Four) meetings held during
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The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its
four meetings in a financial year:

Provided that any emergency meeting in addition|
to regular meeting may be convened at the
request of any one of the members of the
Committee;

the year.

5(4)(b)

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit
Committee shall be constituted in presence of]
either two members of two-third of the members|
of the Audit Committee, whichever is higher,
where presence of an independent director is a
must.

Will follow

5(5)(a)

Role of Audit Committee shall include the following:
Oversee the financial reporting process;

In Practice

5(5)(b)

Monitor choice of accounting policies and
principles;

In Practice

5(5)(c)

Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process|
to ensure that it is adequately resourced,
including approval of the Internal Audit and
Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit]
and Compliance Report;

In Practice

5(5)(d)

oversee hiring and performance of external
auditors;

In Practice

5(5)(e)

Hold meeting with the external or statutory|
auditors for review of the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for
approval or adoption;

In Practice

5(5)(6)

Review along with the management, the annual
financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval;

In Practice

5(5)(8)

Review along with the management, the
quarterly and half yearly financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval;

In Practice

5(5)(h)

Review the adequacy of internal audit function;

In Practice

5(5)(1)

Review the Management’s Discussion and
lAnalysis before disclosing in the Annual Report;

In Practice

5(5)()

Review statement of all related party|
transactions submitted by the management;

In Practice

5(5)(K)

Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal
Control weakness issued by statutory auditors;

I N Y S

In Practice

S(5)(M)

Oversee the determination of audit fees based on|
scope and magnitude, level of expertise deployed
and time required for effective audit and evaluate|
the performance of external auditors; and

<

In Practice

5(5)(m)

Oversee whether the proceeds raised through
Initial Public Offering (IPO)or Repeat Public
Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have been|
utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant
offer document or prospectus approved by the|
Commission. Provided that the management shall
disclose to the Audit Committee about the uses or
applications of the proceeds by major category|
(capital expenditure, sales and marketing
expenses, working capital, etc.), on a quarterly|
basis, as a part of their quarterly declaration of
financial results: Provided further that on an|
annual basis, the company shall prepare a
statement of the proceeds utilized for the
purposes other than those stated in the offer
document or prospectus for publication in the
)Annual Report along with the comments of the
Audit Committee.

Not
Applicable

There was no IPO/RPO/Rights
Issue during the period.

5(6)(a)()

IReporting of the Audit Committee
Reporting to the Board of Directors
The Audit Committee shall report on its activities|

to the Board.

In Practice
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5(6)(a)(ii)(a)

The Audit Committee shall immediately report to
the Board on the following findings, if any: -
Report on conflicts of interests

Not
Applicable

There was no reportable case of]
conflict of interest in 2022.

5(6)(a) (ii) (b)

Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or
material defect identified in the internal audit
and compliance process or in the financial
statements;

Not
Applicable

There was no such case in the|
lyear.

5(6)(a)(i)(c)

Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory|
compliances including securities related laws,
rules and regulations; and

Not
Applicable

Do

5(6)(a)(iD)(d)

IAny other matter which the Audit Committee
deems necessary shall be disclosed to the Board
immediately;

Not
Applicable

5(6)(b)

Reporting to the Authorities

[f the Audit Committee has reported to the Board
about anything which has material impact on the|
financial condition and results of operation and|
has discussed with the Board and the
management that any rectification is necessary|
and if the Audit Committee finds that such
rectification has been unreasonably ignored, the
)Audit Committee shall report such finding to the
Commission, upon reporting of such matters to
the Board for three times or completion of a
period of 6 (six) months from the date of first]
reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier.

Not
Applicable

5(7)

Reporting to the ~ Shareholders and  General,
Investors-

Report on activities carried out by the Audit
Committee, including any report made to the
Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above
during the year, shall be signed by the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee and
disclosed in the annual report of the issuer]
company.

Not
Applicable

6(1)()

INomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).
Responsibility to the Board of Directors

The company shall have a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub-
committee of the Board;

6(1)(b)

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of]
the nomination criteria or policy for determining|
qualifications, positive attributes, experiences
and independence of directors and top level
executive as well as a policy for formal process of|
considering remuneration of directors, top level
executive;

In Practice

6(1)(c)

The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be,
clearly set forth in writing covering the areas
stated at the condition No. 6(5)(b).

In Practice

6(2)(a)

Constitution of the NRC
The Committee shall comprise of at least three|
members including an independent director;

<

In Practice

6(2)(b)

IAll members of the Committee shall be non-
executive directors;

In Practice

6(2)(c)

Members of the Committee shall be nominated
and appointed by the Board;

In Practice

6(2)(d)

The Board shall have authority to remove and
appoint any member of the Committee;

In Practice

6(2)(e)

In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or]
removal of any member of the Committee or in
any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill
the vacancy within 180 (one hundred eighty)
days of occurring such vacancy in the Committee;

< | X% &=

In Practice

6(2)(f)

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint|
or co-opt any external expert and/or member(s)

of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be|

In Practice
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non-voting member, if the Chairperson feels that]
advice or suggestion from such external expert]
and/or member(s) of staff shall be required or]
valuable for the Committee;

6(2)(g)

The company secretary shall act as the secretary|
of the Committee;

In Practice

6 (2)(h)

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not
constitute without attendance of at least an
independent director;

In Practice

6(2)(1)

No member of the NRC shall receive, either]
directly or indirectly, any remuneration for any|
advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other
than Director’s fees or honorarium from the
company.

In Practice

6(3)(a)

Chairperson of the NRC

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC|
to be Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be|
an independent director;

In Practice

6(3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves|
as Chairperson for that particular meeting, the
reason of absence of the regular Chairperson
shall be duly recorded in the minutes;

In Practice

6(3)(c)

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the|
annual general meeting (AGM) to answer the
queries of the shareholders:

Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the
NRC, any other member from the NRC shall be
selected to be present in the annual general
meeting (AGM) for answering the shareholder’s
queries and reason for absence of the
Chairperson of the NRC shall be recorded in the|
minutes of the AGM.

In Practice

6(4)()

Meeting of the NRC
The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a|
financial year;

In Practice

6(4)(b)

The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any|
emergency meeting upon request by any member
of the NRC;

In Practice

(4)(c)

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be|
constituted in presence of either two members or|
two third of the members of the Committee,
whichever is higher, where presence of an|
independent director is must as required under
condition No. 6(2)(h);

In Practice

6(4)(d)

The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall
duly be recorded in the minutes and such minutes
shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC.

In Practice

6(5)()

Role of the NRC
NRC shall be independent and responsible or]
accountable to the Board and to the shareholders;

In Practice

6(5)(b)(1)(a)

INRC shall oversee, among others, the following
matters and make report with recommendation to
the Board:

Formulating the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and|
independence of a director and recommend a
policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration
of the directors, top level executive, considering]
the following:the level and composition of]
remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate suitable directors to
run the company successfully;

In Practice

6(5)(b)(1)(b)

the relationship of remuneration to performance
is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

In Practice

6(5)(b)(1)(c)

Remuneration to directors, top level executive
involves a balance between fixed and incentive)

pay reflecting short and long-term performance

In Practice
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objectives appropriate to the working of the|
company and its goals;

6(5)(b)(ii)

devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into
consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity,
educational background and nationality;

In Practice

6(5) (b)(iii)

identifying persons who are qualified to become|
directors and who may be appointed in top level
executive position in accordance with the criterial
laid down, and recommend their appointment

and removal to the Board;

In Practice

6 (5)(b)(iv)

formulating the criteria for evaluation of]
performance of independent directors and the
Board;

In Practice

6(5)(b)(v)

identifying the company’s needs for employees
at different levels and determine their selection,
transfer or replacement and promotion criteria;
and

In Practice

6(5)(b)(vi)

developing, recommending and reviewing
annually the company’s human resources and
training policies;

In Practice

6(5)(c)

The company shall disclose the nomination and
remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria
and activities of NRC during the year at a glance
in its annual report.

In Practice

7(1)(@)

External or Statutory Auditors.

The issuer company shall not engage its external
or statutory auditors to perform the following
lservices of the company, namely:-Appraisal or
valuation services or fairness opinions;

7(1)(ii)

Financial information systems design and
implementation;

7(1)(iii)

Book-keeping or other services related to the
accounting records or financial statements;

7(1)(iv)

Broker-dealer services;

7(D)(v)

|Actuarial services;

7(1)(vi)

Internal audit services or special audit services;

7(1)(vii)

lAny service that the Audit Committee
determines;

7(1)(viii)

lAudit or certification services on compliance of
corporate governance as required under
condition No. 9(1);and

o 4 &4 Y

7(1)(ix)

lAny other service that creates conflict of
interest.

<

7(2)

No partner or employees of the external audit|
firms shall possess any share of the company|
they audit at least during the tenure of their|
audit assignment of that company; his or her]
family members also shall not hold any shares in
the said company:

Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father,
mother, brother, sister, son-in-law and|
daughter-in-law shall be considered as family|
members.

7(3)

Representative of external or statutory auditors
shall remain present in the Shareholders
Meeting  (Annual General Meeting or
Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the
queries of the shareholders.

8(1)

Maintaining a website by the Company. -
The company shall have an official website|
linked with the website of the stock exchange.

8(2)

The company shall keep the website functional
from the date of listing.
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8(3)

The company shall make available the detailed|
disclosures on its website as required under the
listing regulations of the concerned stock
exchange(s).

o(1)

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate|
Governance. -

The company shall obtain a certificate from a
practicing Professional Accountant or Secretary|
(Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management
lAccountant or Chartered Secretary) other than
its statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly|
basis regarding compliance of conditions of]
Corporate Governance Code of the Commission
and shall such certificate shall be disclosed in|
the Annual Report.

Certificate of compliance of corporate|
Governance obtained from ARTISAN-
Chartered Accountant.

9(2)

The professional who will provide the certificate
on compliance of this Corporate Governance
Code shall be appointed by the shareholders in
the annual general meeting.

|Approval of appoint of Corporate
Governance Auditor for the yearn
2022-2023 will be taken from the|
shareholders in the 40t Annual
General Meeting.

9(3)

The directors of the company shall state, in
accordance with the Annexure-C attached, in
the directors’ report whether the company

has complied with these conditions or not.

Stated in the directors report.
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Independent Auditors' Report
To the shareholders of
Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd.
Report on the Audit of the Financial Sh:lfemenls

Opinion

We have audited the finoncial statements of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited (the Company), which
comprise fhe Statement of Finoncial Position as at 30 June, 2022, and Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equily and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinicn, the accompanying financial siatements give true and fair view, In all material
respects, of the finoncial position of the company as at 30 June 2022 and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year than ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), The Companias Act 1994, The Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and
other applicakle laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our oudil in accordance with Internctional Standards on Auditing [ISAs). Our
responsitilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in
accordance with the ‘International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Prafessional Accountants (IESBA code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevani to
our audit of the financial statements in Bongladesh, and we have fulfiled our olher ethical
responsibiities in cccordance with the IESBA Code. We believe thal the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

In our opinion, we have considered the odequacy of disclosure in the financial statement in the
light of such, we would like to draw attention of the users of these financial statement on the below
mictters:

As disclosed in note no- 1401, the case with Agrani Bank Limiled is sfill pending with the
Honorable Supreme Court of Bangladesh. Thus, amount received from Agrani Bank Limited
against the legal claim is considered as liabiity and this amount is kept as FDR os disclosed in
Mote rno- 8,

Key Audit Matters

Key oudil matters ore those matters that, in cur professional judgment, were of mast significance in
our audil of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on thase motiers.

SRES &
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Risk

L

Qur response to the risk

Revenue Rec ognition

| which give rise to an inherent rsk of the

At year end the reported toral revenue of Tk,
351,472,306f-Tha company
revenue from sale of goods to local market,

We idenrtified revenue recognition as key
audil matter as it s one of the key

performance indicators of the Company,

existence and the accuracy of the revenue,

Mole rio 25.00 to the statement of cmn‘sn-e-rmfv'é income,

gererales

We have tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key contrcls focusing on the
following

=

\.l

Obtgining on undestanding of and |
assessing fhe design and operating |
elfectivenass of controls designed 1o |
ensure that revenue is recognized in the
appropriate accounting penod.

Segregaiion of cuties in invoice crealion
and modification and fiming of revenue
recognition.

Assessing the appropricteness of the '
Company's accounting pelicies  for
revenrue recognition and compliance of
those policias with opplicable
accounting standaords. I

Obtain supparting documents for sals
fransaction  to  determine  whether
revenue was recognized 'n the cumrert

pencd. i

i
Comparing o somple of mevenue !
transactions recognized durng the yeor
with the sale invoices and other relevant
underlying docurneniction.

Critically  ossessng  manual  journcls
posted to revenue to identify unusual or
ireguiar iterms. and finally assessed the
appropriateness and  preseniation  of |
disclosures ogainst releveni cccounting
standards.

Valuation of inventory

The inventory of Tk.203,222,070/-as of 33, 'We
management s
calcuiating the value of the inventary provisian

June, 2022 held in warehouses and foctory,

the oppropriciensss, of
assumplions  appied i

challenged

inventores are camed at the lower of costi by:
and nel reglizcble value, As o resulf, the
Directons apply judgment in determining ¥ Evalvating the design and |
| the appropriate values for slow-moving or implemeniation of key invantary controls
obsolete items, operating across the faciory and i
warehouse, i
¥ Aftending inventory counts  and
reconciing the count resuils lo thei
irnventory listing to test the completeness i
, of data. |
I 1 H
| i 1
! | » Reviewing the histoicai cccuacy of |
L L nventory provisioning and the level of |
e =
_I*__‘e?“E ﬁ‘?‘
(0 S
W)
Lbreg wf;/
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inventory write-offs during the year; and
challenging the completeness  of
inventory provisions through assessing
actual and forecast sales of inventory
lines to assess whether provisions ior slow
moving/obsolete stock are wvalid and

complete,
» Comparing the net readlizable wvalue
obtained through a detailed review of

sales subsequent to the year-end, to the
cost price of a sample of inventories and
comparison to the associated provision
to assess whether inventory provisions are
complete.

Note no. 5.00 to the financial statements

Fixed deposit with Bank (Investment in FDR)

Amount received against legal claim from
Agrani Bank Limited was kept as Fixed
Deposit with Banks .Interest generated from
the fixed deposits account for a
considerable amount of total income so the
deposits are vital and relevant rate of interest
and income are key matters for the
company.

Total fixed deposits of the Company at 30
June 2022 was Tk, 527,369,474/-

We additionally carried out the

substantive testing for this item:

following

» Obtained Fixed Deposit Schedule and
checked physical existence of Fixed
Deposit.

Obtained Fixed Deposit bank statement
and verified with Fixed Deposit schedule
and checked calculation of Fixed
Deposit interest and income recognized.

Encashment of Fixed Deposits were
checked with Bank statement and
confirmation were taken.

Finally assessed the appropriaieness and
presentation of disclosures against relevant
accounting  Standards, IAS  and ofher
applicable rules and regulations and regulatory
guidelines

Note no 8.00 fo the financial statements

Other Current Liabilities

The Company reports the palance of other
current liabilities amounting to
Tk.447,197,576/- as at 30 June, 2022 which
includes legal claim money received from
Agrani Bank Ltd.

Creditors balances have significant impact
on net assets value of the company and due
to the nature of claim we considered it to be
significant to the financial statements.

We carried out the following substantive testing
for this item:

» We tested and obtained available
relevant papers and record.

Reviewed the adjustments
movements procedures and issues.

and

» Finally assessed the requirement of
regular and in time adjustments of
transaction.

Note no. 18.00 to the financial statemenis
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Other Information 3

Management s responsibie for the other infarmation. The other information comprises il of the
information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and , in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtcined in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is o
material misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard. '

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
and Internal Controls T '
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial siaiements ia
accordance witn IFRSs, The Companies Act 1994, The Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and
other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as managemient aetermines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free frem naterial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, The Companies Act, 1994 require the management to
ensure effective infernal audit, internal control and risk management funciions of the company.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the company or to cease operations, or has no reaiistic alternative but 1¢ do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements ‘

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about wnether the financial stctements as o
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an cuditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not o
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a mgteriol
rnissiatement when it exists. Missiatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the cggregate, they could reasonably be expected to intiuence ihe
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financiol statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, ana obtuin
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis tfor our cpinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than tor ons resulting from
error, as fraud rnay involve collusion, fergery, intentional omissions, misrepreseniations, o the
override of internal control.

+ Obicin an understanding of infernai control relevani to the audit in crdei 1o design. audil
procedures that are appreoeriaie in circumstances.

o Evaluaie the approprictensss of accounting policies used and the reascnobleness cf
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

« Conclude on the approoricteness of management’'s use of the going cencein basis
accounting and, based on the audit evidence cbtaired, whether a material uncertainty sxists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
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continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosers are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disc osures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
event in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the company to express an opinion on the financial statemenis we
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the company audit. We solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matier should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with The Companies Act 1994, and The Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and
relevant ncetifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also report
that:
a) We have oblained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof:

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books as required by
law have been kept by the company so far as it appeared from our examinations of those
books;

c) The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensive
Income and Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows of the Company
dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns; and

d) The expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the Company's business.

f""} g .-
1250
Md. Abdur Rashid, FCA

Partner

FAMES & R

Dated : October 30, 2022 Chartered Accountants
Place : Dhaka DVC # 2210300474A5842755
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ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Statement of Financiai Position

As at 30 June, 2022

Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
Particulars Notes || 30 June 2022 30 June 2021

ASSETS

A. Non-Current Assets: _

Property,Plant and Equipment 3 67,157,818 73,672,292
Investment in equity 4 1.000.841 1,000.841
Total Non-Current Assets (A) 68,158,659 74,673,133
B. Current Assets:

Inventories 5 203,222,070 89,554,040 |
Debtors [ 998,379 958,379 !
Advances, Deposits and Prepayments i 105,865,714 101,168,442
Investment in FOR g 527,349,474 597,488,559
Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 26,027,854 8344714
Total Current Assets (B) 363,483.491 797,554,164
Total Assets (A+B) 931,642,150 872,227,299
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

C. Shareholders' Equity:

Share Capital 10 222,985,490 222,985,470
Capital Reserve 21.350 21,350
General Reserve 1,395,080 1,395,080

Revaluation Reserve 11 9,079,807 9,908,433
Tax Holiday Reserve 12 10,747,334 10,747,334
Retained Earnings 13 131,863 574) (52,945.218)
Total Shareholders' Equity (C) 212,360,487 192.091.76%
D. Non-Current Liabilities: .
Long Terrn Loan Fund 14 175,466,710 139,123,633
Deferred Tax Liability 15 -~ 4,879,505 6,000,026
Total Non-Current Liabilities (D) 180,346,215 145,123,657
E. Current Liabilities: . L
Advance Against Sales 16 100,300 ‘
Security and Qther Deposits 17 19,822 19,822
Other Current Liabilities 18 447 197,576 453,934,902
Unpaid Dividend 19 101,221 271,891
Provision for Taxes 20 57,265,162 53,232,720
Provisions for ofher liabilities and charges 21 13,314,537 7,385,065
Bank Overdraft 22 18,772,080 18,772,080
Workers' Frofit Participation Fund 23 2,165,050 6795.390
Total Current Liabilities (E) 538,935,448 535,011,871
F. Total Liabilities F= (D+E) 719,281,643 680,135,530
G. Total Equity and Liabilities G=(C+F) 931,642,150 872,227,299
Number of share 22,298,549 22,298,549
Net Assets Value Per Share (NAVPS) Restaled 24 9.52 8.61

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form arrintegral part cf the financial statements

Company S%iury

Managlhg Director & CEO

—Ldan,

Director

This is the Stoiement of Financial Position referred to in our report of even dete.

Dated: October 30, 2022
Place: Dhaka
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ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June, 2022

Amount in Taka

Amount in Taka

POEhIs Notes|| 30 june 2022 30 June 2021
Revenue (Turnover) 25 351,472,306 152,453,365
Less : Cost of Sales 26 308,849,123 161,035,237
Gross Profit 42,623,183 (8,581,872)
Less: Operating Expenses:
Administrative Expenses 27 16,159,789 15,158,049
Selling & Distribution Expenses 28 261,303 1,478,264
Total Operating Expenses 16,421,092 16,636,313
Operating Profit /Loss 26,202,091 (25.218,185)
Less: Financial Expenses
Interest on Long Term Loan 36,343,077 -
Net Operating Profit /Loss (10,140,986) {25.218,185)
Add:Non Operating Income:
Interest Income 29 35,626,991 35817.115
Other Income 30 2,853.566 3,254,270 |
Dividend from CDBL 1,250,020 750,000 |
Total Non operating Income 39,730,657 39,821.385
Net Profit before W.P.P.F 29,589,671 14,603,200
Less: Workers Profit Participation Fund @ 5% (1,409,032 (6%5,320)
Net Profit before Tax 28,180,639 13,907,810
Provision for Tax: .
Current Tax 31 2,032,442} {‘?,L‘J%f),é?(ﬂ
Deferred Tax 15 1,120,521 978,194 |
Net profit after Tax 20,268.71_8_ 5,755,334
Earning per share (EPS) Restated 32 0.91

0.26

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financia, stalemants

Compuny Secrefary

MaHaying Director & CEO

Director

This is the Statement of Comprehansive Income referred 1o in our report of even dare.

Dated: Ociober 30, 2022
Place: Dhaka
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ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2022

FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants

Share Tax Holiday | Capital | General | Revaluation| Retained Total
Pariculars Capital Reserve | Reserve| Reserve Reserve Earnings Equity
[Tk.] [Tk.] [Tk.] [Thk.] [Tk.] [Tk.] [Tk.]
Opening Balance as on :
1st July 2021:
Retained Earnings - - - - - (52,965918)| (52.945.918)
Share capital 222,985,490 . - - - - 222,985,490
Tax Holiday Reserve - 10,747,334 . - - - 10,747,334
Capital Reserve - - 21,350 - - - 21,350
General Reserve - - - 1,395,080 - - 1,395,080
Revaluation Reserve - - - - 9,908,433 - 9,908,433
Sub-Total 222,985,490 | 10,747,334 | 21,350 | 1,395,080 9,908,433 | (52,9465.918)| 192,091,769
Net Profit during the year - - - - - 20,268,718 20,268,718
Depreciation of Reserve
on Revaluation of Fixed - - - (828,626) 828,626
Assets (2021-22) -
Total Balance 222,985,490 | 10,747,334 | 21,350 | 1,395,080 9.079.807 | (31,868,574)| 212,340,487
ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2021
Share Tax Holiday | Capital | General | Revaluation| Retained Total
Particulars Capital Reserve | Reserve| Reserve Reserve Earnings Equity
[Tk.] [Tk.] [Tk.] Mk.] k. [Tk.] ITk.]
Opening Balance as on
1st July 2020;
Retained Earnings - - - - (57,502,617) (57.502.617)
Share capital 222,985,490 - - - - - 222,985,490
Tax Holiday Reserve 10,747,334 - - - - 10,747,334
Capital Reserve . 21,350 - - - 21,350
General Reserve - - . 1,395,080 - - 1,395,080
Revaluation Reserve - - - - 10,83%.153 - 10,839,153
Sub-Total 222,985,490 | 10,747,334 | 21,350 | 1,395,080 | 10,839,153 | (57.502,617)| 188,485,790
Net Profit during the year - 5,755,334 5,755,334
Depreciation of Reserve
on Revaluation of Fixed - - (930,720) 930,720
Assets (2020-21) 5
Inventory audit fee - - 70.000 70.000
VAT on inventory audit feg - - 10,500 10,500
Dividend Paid - - - - (2,229,855) (2,229,855)
Total Balance 222,985,490 | 10,747,334 | 21,350 | 1,395,080 9,908,433 | (52.965.918)| 192,091,769

The accounting policies and explanctory notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Company Seﬁ/

This is the Statement of Changes in equily referred to in our report of even date.

Dated: October 30, 2022
Place: Dhaka

Managdihg Director & CEQ
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ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June, 2022

FAMES & R
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Amount in Taka | Amourt in Tako
FaIEUER Notes || " 30 une 2022 | 30 June 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Cash receipts from customers and others 359,301,147 154,395,245
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (437,108,863) (68.083,254)
Advance Payment of tax as per section-44 (3.877.994) {3,756,149)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 33.00 (81,685,710) 82,556,842
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipmants [6,741,506]] {2—2_240}1
Investrnent in Current Assets (FDRs) (399,994,095) (431,520,809,
Received from Encashment of FDR 470,113,212 319,210,845
Interest Received 35,626,991 35817115
Dividend received 1,280,000 750,000
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) 100,254,602 (75,765,089
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

SOD Loan paid - B
Dividend Paid (885,752) (2,255,142)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities ( C) (885,752) (2,255,142)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents: 17.683,14C 4,536,611
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year 8,344,714 3,308,103
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 26,027,854 g q,__‘_£
Net Operating Cash Flow per share {Restated) 34.00 | (3.86)] 3.70

The accounting policies ana explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statem=ri,

Company Secu‘l{

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even aate.

Mantging Diréctor & CEO Director

~
Md. Abdur Eashid, FCa [Erii # 474)

Pariner

Dated: October 30, 2022 FAMES & R

Piace: Dhaka Chartered Acccountonis:

DVC: 22103C50474458427 55
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ALHAJ TEX‘I_'II.E MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 3C June, 2022

The Company and its Operations:

Legal form of the Company:

Alhaj Textile Mills Limited was incorporated on March 3, 1961 as ‘Private” Company, limited by
shares and registered with the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms under the
Companies Act, 1913 (subsequently amended in the year 1994) vide its Registration No. 1517.
Subsequently this Private Limited Company was converted into a Public Limited Company by
shares on October 7, 1967. In the year 1972 the company was nationalized througn the P.O-
27 ond the mil was operated under the management of Bangladesh Textile Mils
Corporation. Thereafter on 12 December 1982 the company was denatioralized and
returned back to its previous cwners.

Enlistment with the Stock Exchange
Company was listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchonge Limited (DSE) in the year 1948.

Address of the Registered & Corporate Office:

The registered office and principal place of business of the company i iocated af 66,
Dilkusha Commercial Area (4" Floor), Dhaka-1000 and its factory is situated af 1.K. Road,
Ishurdi, Pabna.

Nature of Business Activities:

The principal activities of the Company throughout the year are o manufacture cotton yarn
and market its product in local and foreign markets. Due to dispute with the Agrani Bank
Limited, the factory remain closed up to 14-6-2021. The factory has restarted its production
from 15-06-2021.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Preparation, Presentation and Disclosure of the Financial statements:

The financial statements have been prepared an< the disclosures of infarmaticn are made in
acccrdance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, Internaticnai Accourting
Standard (IAS) and Interrational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) as adopted by tne
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). The Statement of Financial Position
and Statement of Comprehensive Income have been prepared cccording to i4S-1
“Presentation of Financial Statements” based on accrual basis of accounting foilowing going
concern asstmption under generally accepted accounting orinciples and practices in
Bangladesh and Statement of Cash Flows according to 1AS-7 "Statement of Cash Flows™.

Accounting Convention & Assumption:

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except preperty,
plant and equipment which was taken as revaiue in the year-1988 and at cost for addition
afterthe year1988.

Principal Accounting Policies:

The specific accounting policies have been selected and applied by the Compary's
management for significant transactions and events that heve a material effect within fne
Framework for preparation and presentaticn of the rinancial statements. Financial siaterments
have been prepared and presented in compliance with IAS-1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”. The previous year's figures were formulated according to the scme accounting
principles. Compared to the previous yecr, there were no significant changes in the
accounting and valuation policies affecting the financial position and overformance of the
Company. However, changes made 1o the presentation are expiained in the note for each
respective item. Accounting end valuation methods are disclosea for reasens of ciarity. Tae
Company classified the expenses using the function of expenses methcd as per |AS-1.
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2.04 Legal Compliance:
The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information were made
in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, Securities and Exchange
Rules 1987, Listing Regulations of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and other laws and
regulations applicable in Bangladesh. On the basis of these regulations, International
Accounting Standards (IAS) &International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) were applied
with the applicable standards.

2,05 Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumptions & Judgments:
The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with IFRS that requires the use of
certan critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in
the process of applying the Company's accounting policies.

2.06 Going Concern:
The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future.
For this reason going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements.

2.07 Components of the Financial Statements:
According to the International Accounting Standards (IAS)-1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” the complete set of Financial Statements includes the following components™:

« Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June, 2022;

*« Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June, 2022;

« Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June, 2022;

* Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June, 2022 and

= Notes, comprising a summary of significant Accounting Policies and Other
Explanatory Information.

2.08 Application of Standards:
The following IASs and IFRSs are applied for the financial statements of the year under review:

IAS-1 Presentation of Financial Statements;

IAS -2 Inventories;

IAS-7 Statement of Cash Flows;

IAS-8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Erraors;
IAS-10  Events after the Reporting Period:

IAS-12  Income Taxes;

IAS-16  Property, Plant & Equipment;

1AS-19  Employee Benefits;

IAS-21  The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates;
IAS-23  Borrowing Cost;

IAS-24  Related Party Disclosures;

IAS-32  Financial Instrument Preparation;

IAS-33  Earnings per Share;

IAS-34  Interim Financial Reporting;

IAS-36  Impairment of Assets;

IAS-37  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;
IAS-38  Intangible Assets;

IFRS-7 Financial Instrument: Disclosure;

IFRS-9  Financial Instrument;

IFRS-15 Revenue from contracts with customers:

2.09 Property, Plant & Equipment:

a. Recognition and Measurement:
In compliance with 1AS-16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) items of Property, Plant and
Equipment (PPE), has been measured at revalue amount on 1988 and thereafter all
additions at cost less accumulated depreciation excluding land. The cost of an item of
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PPE comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable taxes after deducting
trade discount and rebates and any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the
location and condition necessary for it fo be capable of operating in the intended
manner,

b. Subsequent Costs:
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.
The day to day maintenance cost, on PPE, is recognized as expenses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as incurred,

c. Depreciation:
No depreciation is charged on land.
Censistently, depreciation is provided on diminishing balance method based on written
down value at which the asset is caried in the books of account. Depreciation continues
to be provided until such time as the writien down value is reduced to taka one.

Depreciation has been charged on addition on the basis of date of purchase facquisition
and also depreciation has been charged on property plant and equipment in the year of
disposal.

The rate of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

:k’ Name of the Assets Rate { %) i
A | Land & Land Development "1
1 | Ltond _ !
2 Land & Land Development (Road and Culvert) 7% |
B Building & Others Construction “—:]
1 Building & Construction 5%, |
2 Other Building, Construction & Installation and Generator House 10% '
3 H/Q Interior Decoration 25%, !
c Plant & Machineries:

1 Plo'ni and Machinery, All Other Workshep, Powe_r House, Fire Fighting, 15%
Office, Transport, Loose Tools, Laboratory & Appliance ]
2 Air Compressor, Testing Lab, Grinding, Boiler Installation, Water
Treatment Gas Pipeline, Fire Fighting, Humidification Plant, Gas 0% !
Generator and Other Machinzs !
3 | Laboratory Appliance & Cooling Tower 0%
4 | Plant and Machinery (Evaluction Unit) B 5%
5 | Gas Generator Overhauling 0% :
D | Motor Car & Vehicle: i
; Motor Car, By-Cycle & Truck T 0w :
g | Furniture & Fixture: |
i All Furniture o 10% |
2 | Air Condition and Rezidential Furniture ' 20% |
E Other Sundry Assets __]
1 Soft Furnish, Arms and Ammunition ' 15% i
2 | Books, Cookeries, Radio, TV, Interior , Telephone, Mokile. Mike, Fax, - :
j Sign Board, Refrigerator, Water Tank, Games & Sports and others. el o
3 | C.C.Camera L 25%
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4 Computer Machine 30%

5 Upgrading and Modernization of Carding Machine & Drawing Frame 40%
__| Machine

& Upgrading and Modernization of Carding Savio Auto Cone Machine 35%

Note: Depreciation on gas generator major overhauling, overhauling of carding machine,
drawing frame machine & auto cone machine has been charged at straight line method.

Retirements and Disposals:

An asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use and subsequent disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized as gain or loss from disposal of asset under
otherincome in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Impairment of Assets:

All assets have been reviewed according to 1AS-36 Impairment of Assets and it was
confirmed that no such assets have been impaired during the year and for this reason no
provision has been made for impairment of assets.

Inventories:

Inventories comprises of raw cotton, spare parts, packing materials, work in process, finish
yarn [goods), store in transit , stock of waste cotton etc. Physical inventory has been taken at
year end along with the statutory auditor of the company FAMES & R, Chartersd
Accountants.

Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value in
compliance to the requirements of IAS-2. Costs including an appropriate portion of fixed and
variable overhead expenses are assigned to inventories by the method most appropriate to
the particular class of inventory. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for
the inventories less all estimated cost of completion and cost necessary to make the sale.

Cash & Cash Equivalents:

Cash & cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash at banksof the Company. There is
an insignificant risk of change in value of the same.

Creditors & Accrued Expenses:

Trade & Other Payables:
Liabilities are recorded at the amount payable for settlement in respect of goods and

services received by the Company. These include Advance against Sales, Security and Other
Deposits and Other Current Liabilities.

2.13.2 Provisions:

2.14

Necessary provision for the current assets which are seems to be doubtful of recovery are
made in the financial statements in conformity with International Accounting Standards.

Employees’ Benefit:
Employees of the Company are entitled to get the following benefits from the Company:

a. Gratuity:
Gratuity benefit has been stopped oy the management from July'2005.

b. Festival Bonus:
The Company gives two festival bonuses to its all contractual employees each year.
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c. Workers' Profit Participation Fund:
This represents 5% of the net profit after charging as per provisions of Bangladesh Labour
Law, 2006 (as amended in 2013) and is payable to the workers as defined under the said
Law.

Income Tax:

2.15.1 Current Tax:

Provision for taxation has been made as per rates prescribed in the Finance Act, 2022 and
the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 on profit made by the company. As per IAS-12 Income Tax
Provision has been made during the year as the company earned taxable income.

2.15.2 Deferred Tax:

2.16

2.17

2.18

219

2,20

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assefs and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxcble
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all cdeduciible
temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be availabie against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Related Party Transactions:

Company is not connected to any related party transaction except Tk.5,805,168/- as
mentioned in note -36 for Honorarium paid to the Chairman, Remuneration 1o the Mancging
Director, Attendance fee for Board Meeting cnd committee meeting and salary ond
allowances to the SNo's Management Executives are Company Secretary ,DGM (Admin},
DGM (Production and Mechanical),Chief Financic! Officer (Acting) and Internal Audit
Officer.

Contingent Liabilities &Contingent Assets: _

Contingent licbilities and assets are curent or possibie obligations or assets, arising “om past
events and whose existence is due to the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events which are not within the control of the Company. In accordance
with 1AS-37 Provision, Contingent Liabiiities and Contingenrt Assets are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured ct the fait value of the consideration received
or receivable, net of returns, frade discounts and volume rebates exclusive of VAT as per IFRS-
15.Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and reward of owrership nave been
transterred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably and there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods sold. Transfer of risk and rewards occurs for the sale of goodis
when the product is delivered along with dispatch documents and invoices to customers.

Foreign Currency Translation: .
fransactions in foreign curencies are trarslated into -Bangladesh Taka at .the foreign
exchange rcte ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetery assets and liabilities ore
converted al the rates prevailing ot the Statement of Balance Sheet daie. Non-monerziry
assets and liabilities denominated in {orsign currencies, stated ct historical cost are iransicied
into Bangladesh Taka at the excharge rate ruling at the date of frensaction.

Statements of Cash Flows:

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance witn 1AS-7. Staiement of Cash
Flows and the cash flows from operating activities have beer, presented under diect
method. '
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Earning per Share:

The Company calculates Earning per Share (EPS) in accordance with 1AS-33: “Earning per
Share", which has been shown on the face of Statement of Comprehensive Income, and the
computation of EPS is stated in the note. Earnings per Share has been calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period and retrospective effect has also
been given for calculation of previous year's earnings as well as to conform to the current
year's presentation.

Segment Reporting:

No segmental reporting is applicable for the company as required by IFR3-8: “Operating
Segment" as the company operates in a single industry segment and within a single
geographical territory.

Comparative:

Financial statements are presented as IAS-1 '‘Presentation of Financial Statements” and
previous year's figures have been reclassified, re-arranged ond restated where found
necessary to provide information that is reliable and more relevant and to conform to the
current year's presentation due to changes accounting policies accounting estimates and
errors as per IAS-8 "' Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors''.

Reporting Period:
The financial statements cover one year from 01July, 2021 to 30 June, 2022,

General:
Figures appearing in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest taka.
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Property.Plant and Equipment :Tk. 67,157,818

Particulars

The balance is made up as follows:
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year

Less:Adjustment during the year

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Written Down Value as on 30.06.2022 (A)

Increase in value on revaluation of fixed assets- opening balance
Less: Depreciation during the year

Net Increase In value on Revaluation as on 30.06.2022 (B)

Closing balance of Property ,Plant and Equipment (A+B)

(Details of Fixed Assets has been shown inSchedule-1 & 2)

Investment in equity: Tk 1,000,841

Details are stated below:

Investment in Shares of Alhgj Jute Mills Lid.
Investment in Shares of CDBL (Equity)
Total

FAMES & R
Chartered Accountants

Amount in Taka

30 June 2022 | 30 June 2021

413,777,029 413,754,789
6,741,506 22,240
420,518,535 413,777,029
(82.659) -
420,435,876 413,777,027
(362.357.865)  (350.013,170)
58,078,011 43,763,859
9,908,433 10,839,153
(828,626) {930,720}
9,079,807 7,908,433
67,157,818 73,672,292
841 841
1,000,000 1,000,000
1,000,841 1,000,841

The company hold 90 shares of the Alhg] Jute Mills Limited since long. The tace value of the share is Tk.
10.00 each but in 1982 when the Jute Mill was De-Nationolized the Government fixed the price of per
share at Tk. 9.34. Hence for 90 shares the Company paid Tk. 840.40 to the Government which is shown
in the Stalement of Financial Position. Investment in share of CDBL Tk. 1,000,000 represents 100,000
share of Tk. 10 each. Subsequently the company received 400,000 bonus share. So the total number of

share in CDBL reaches to 500,000 shares.

Inventories: Tk, 203,222,070
Raw Cotton (Note-5.01) 107.215.893 36,145,217
Work in Process (Note-5.02) 4,752,027 2,499,629
Finished Goods (Note-5.03) 67,716,572 32,670,512
Stores and Spares (Note-5.04) 18.912,705 13,229,607
Store in Transit (Note-5.05) 3.529.091 3,529,091
Stock at $pinning (Packing Material) 595,365 595,365
Stock of Waste Cotton 500,417 884,517
Total 203,222,070 89,554,040
Raw Cotton : 2021-2022 2020-2021

Quantity (Kg)| Amount (Tk) Amount (Tk) |  Amount (Tk)
Opening Stock of Raw Cotton 171.461 36,145,317 62,050 11,513,636
Add. Purchase during the year 1,116,522 325,157,538 126,242 27,707,719
Raw Cotton available for use 1,287,983 361,302,855 188,292 39,221,355
Less. Closing Stock (335,041) (107,215,893) (171,451) [36.145.317)
Consumption during the year 952,922 254,084,962 16,831 3,076,038
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Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
Si Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021
No. Qty in Total Qty in Total
(Kg.) Value (Tk) (Xg.) Vaive (Tk) !
A0/1 Auto Cotton Yarn in Cone 6,362 2129133 1.957 453,234
2 154/i Auto Core I 7.056 2,118,647
3 [50/1 Auto Cone - 11,145 2,041,024
4 |20/1. Rotor Yarn in Cong 2,995 335,183 - -
5 |G/ Roror Yarn in Cone 3,739 169,080 208 5371
Total 20,652 4,752,027 13,310 2,499.429
Reconciliation of Work in Process: 2021-2022 2020-2021
Qty In Kg Qty In Kg |
Opening Work In Process: Spinning: 13,102 -
Rotor: . 208 12,310 -
Inpu! from store during the year: Raw Cotton: 952922 ’ 19,073
966,232 T 9073
Useable waste -
Less:Closing Work in Process: Spinning: 13,718 13,102
Rotor: 6,734 (20,652) 208 (13,310)
Quantity available for production 945,580 5762
Production of Yarn during the year: Spinning: 804,231 _ 2,584 T
Rotor: _ 49,581 853,812 2,267 4,883
Wastage/Norma! Loss 91,768 210
T 945,580 ~ &7l
% of wastage/Normal Loss = 9.70% 15.79%
5.03 Closing stock of Finished Goods: Tk. 67,716,572
Amount in Taka Amount in Taka i
Sl Paiticilaes 2021-2022 2020-2021
No. ' Qty in Total Qty in Total
(Kg.) | Value (Tk) (Xg) Value (Tk) |
1 |48/1 Aufo Cotton Yarn in Cone 45 18.057 12,338 4,385,401
2 |3071 Acto Cotton Yam in Cone 57570 | 24.472.279 - T
3 |54/1 Auto Cotton Yarnin Cone 54,140 21,105,531 94,826 27.447 415
4 [50/1 Auto Cotton Yam in Cone (45.34 kg oer dop) i = 2.586 728,275 ,
5 |50/1 Auto Cotton Yarn in Cone 42,805 18,456,757 : |
& |20/1 Rotor Yarn in Cone 25539 3.166.028 07 129,413
7 |1é/1 Rotor Yarn in Cone 1,678 217 459 -
8 |10/1 Rotor Yarn in Cone 3,084 160,461 - -
Total 192,281 67,716,572 112.457 32.6?0,512
Stores & Spares: Tk. 18,912,705
Amountin | Amount in
Sl Particulars Taka Taka
No. 30 June 2022 ; 30 june 2021 |
! liron & Steel 94,113 74 763
2 |Pipes. Tube & Fitting 261,451 1.254,074
< __IFuel, Oil & Lubricants 1,114,098 377295
4 |Raw Materials & Chemicais . 84
2 _|Paint and Varnish 1,404 3.176
° _|General Hardwares 119,855 124,057
7 [Loose Tools 58,438 54,435
8 TComestic Equipment 290 3,03&
¥ [Furniture & Fixtures 2917 L7
0 [packing Materials 2,577,820 2,104,297
T |L.aboratories Appliance 114763 107,237
2 |mechanical Equipment & Spare ports 12,089,136 6,285,224 1
13 |Electrical Equipment & Spares 2,013,407 2,702,500
T4 |Otfice Equipment 26,948 2,214)
15 Miscelianeous Stock 37.763 110,660
[total 18,912,705] 13,229,609
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5.05 Stores - In - Transit: Tk. 3,529,091

Particulars Amount in Taka

30 June 2022 | 30 !une 2021
L/C No.4006/408/11/2001 3,529,091 3,529,091
Total 3,529,091 3,529,091

NoTe:! KeTer 10 NoTe NOo-21.U03

& Debtors: Tk. 998,379
Details of the balance are as follows:

Particulars Notes
Trade Debtors:

Amount receivable against Export sale as per last account 6.01 998,379 998,379
Sundry Debtors: - -

Accrued Income (Interest on FDR lien with PGCL) -
Total 998,379 998,379

6.01 Trade Debtors: Tk, 798,379
Particulars
Tarunno Check Fabrics 744,303 744,303
Suhi Industrial Park Ltd 254,076 254,076
Total 998,379 998,379

This is unsecured. This is for cheque dishonor. The Company filed Case in the Court of Chief Metropolitan
Magistrate (South Zone], Dhaka against the party vide Case no. Metro: Judicial 1362/08, CR Case
no.2992/07 and Case no. Metro: Judicial 1363/08, (CR Case no.2991/07 for Tk. 1,258,000.00 and
Tk.1,000,000.00 respectively. The Hon'ble. Metropolitan join Session Judge. 5th Court. Dhaka Passed
order/Judgment on 21-05-2015 and on 19-11-2015 respectively directing Mr.Abu Hena Mostafaq,
Managing Director, Tarrnno Check Fabrics for one year Imprisonment in each Case with the payment of
Tk.1,258,000.00 and Tk.1,000,000.00 to the plaintiff (Alhgj Textile Mills Ltd). On16-05-2016 Mr. Abu Hena
Mostata Managing Director, filed appeal with the Hon'ble Metropolitan session Judge Court, Dhaka Vide
Metropolitan Criminal appeal no. 583/2016 and 584/2016 against the order dated 21-05-2015 and 19-11-
2015 of Metropolitan joint session Judge depositing Tk.629,000 and Tk.500,000 respectively with
Bangladesh Bank.

The learned session Judge and paribesh Adalat Dhaka up held the Judgment of the Trial Courl in a
modified form in Appeal No. 583/2016 by its Judgment dated 21-05-2015 and we made an upplication
accordingly for realization of the decreed amount. It is mentionable that the decree debtor file a review
petition before the hon'ble High court Division challenging the Judgment and order dated 21-05-2015
passed in another Appeal No. 584/2016 by the self same court.During the year Tk.629.000 has been
received from Tarunno Cheek Fabrics .

7 Advances, Deposits and Pre-payments: TK. 105,865,714
This is unsecured, considered good and consists of the following balances:

Particulars | Amount in Taka
Notes| 30 June 2022 [ 30 June 2021

ADVANCES:

Advance against salary 7.01 - 31,952
Advance against TA/DA 7.02 15,145 19,200
Advance against purchase 7.03 223,163 243.586
Advance Against Company Income Tax 7.04 44,388,879 40,510,885
Other Advances & Prepayments 7.05 226,015 375,193
Advance Against Supply 481,558 245,750
Total Advances 45,334,760 41,426,566
DEPOSITS:

Custom Depaosit 184,480 306,005
Deposit at Agrani bank against BTMC liabilities(Principal) 50,761,093 50,761,093
Bank guaraniee against custom deposit for Humidification Plant 34,290 34,290
Against Oxygen Cylinder 4,000 4,000
Security deposits against gas connection 6,829,324 6,829,324
Security deposits against sales center rent (Belkuchi and Shahjadpur) - 1,101,550
Total Deposits 57,813,187 59,036,262
PREPAYMENTS:

Insurance Premium 7.06 482,260 298,920
Prepaid expenses (Bonus) 2,235,507 406,694
Total Pre-payments 2,717,767 705,614
Total Advances, Deposits & Pre-Payments 105,865,714 101,168,442
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7.01 Advances Against Salary: Tk. Nil

Particulars Designation

DGM(P &M
Audit Officer

Md. Akhtaruzzaman
Md.Sharit Abu Bakar

Tolal
7.02 Advances Against TA/DA: Tk.15,145
Farticulars Designation
Md. Akhtaruzzaman D.G.M [P & M)
M. Jalal uddin Sr.Accounts Officer
Md.Sharif Abu Bakar Audit Officer

Md.Abu Kawser Asst.comm.Officer

Total

7.03 Advances Against Purchase: Tk. 223,143
Particulars Designation
Md. Akhtaruzzaman "D.G.M (P &M)
Md. Abul Hossain M.com

Md.Nazmul Hossain
Md.Abu Kawser
Total

Asst. manager (Share)
Asst comm. Officer

7.04 Advances Against Company Income Tax: Tk, 44,388,879
Year wise details are as under

Accounting \‘llsur Assessment Year

FAMES & R
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Amount in Taka

30 June 2022 ][] 30 June 2021

= 30,952
- 1,000

= 31,952 _

Amount in Taka

|
[ 30 June 2022 [ 30 June 2021

4,445 6,000

2,700 2,850

- 2,350

8,000 5,000
15,145 19,200

Amount in Taka

30 June 20221| 30 June 2021

219 429 227,001
1.565 1.565
2,149 -

- 15 000

ngilgg 243,536

Amount in Taka

30 June 2022 || 30 June 2021

1586-1987 1987-88 705,708 705,708
1997-1998 1998-99 £.445 © 5,445
1998-1999 1999-2000 28,858 28,858
2002-2003 2003-2004 33,174 33,174
2005-2006 2006-2007 126,226 126,226
2008-2009 2009-2010 3,387,331 3,387,331
2007-2010 2010-201" 63,771 63,771
20122013 2013-2014 475,528 475,528
2013-2014 2014-2015 2,989,346 2,989,344
2014-2015 2015-2016 1.611,349 1,611,349
2015-2016 2016-2017 4,274 1'8 4,274 138
2016-2017 2017-2018 B.205,042 8.205.042
2017-2018 2018-2019 9,253,248 9,253,258
2018-2019 2019-2020 1,292.777 1,292,777
2019-2020 2020-2021 4,302,765 4,202,765
2020-2021 2021-2022 3,756,149 3.756,149
2021-2022 2022-2023 3,877,994 .
Total 44,388,879 10,885
7.05 Other Advances & Prepayment: Tk. 226,015
Particulars Amount in Taka
Deslgnation = e 2022][ 30 June 2021
M/S. Alhaj lute Mills Lid. 1,408 1,408
Bangicdesh General 'nsurance Co. (BGIC) 20,000 90,000
Mc. Solam Murshed AO . 12,584
Md. Akhtaruzzaman 0.GM (P &M 79.483 34155
M/S. Aroour Enterprise . 4,640
Md.abaulioh Al-Mamun (Belkuchi) SR . 26,300
Md.Mizarur Rahman (Shahjadgun) S.R 5124 18,533
SK Md.Murshed 0000 £0 000
M/5. Techno Aliens - 39800

Dona engireers international Itd.
Total
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7.06 Insurance Premium:Tk. 482,260

Details are as under Date Amount in Taka
Particulars 30 June 2022 (] 30 June 2021
BGIC/DIO/FB-0118/12/2020 31/12/20 = 85,452
BGIC/DZIO/FB-018/2/22 24/2/22 70,227 126,064
BGIC/DZ0O/FB-24/2/22 24/2/22 31,662 30.794
BGIC/DZO/FP/ENDT-0025-5-22 2/5/2022 60,422 -
BGIC/DZO/FP/ENDT-10/2/22 22/2/22 47,845
BGIC/DIZO/FP-17/1/21 2/12/2021 31,135 -
BGIC/DZO/FP-16/1/21 9/12/2021 127.457 =
BGIC/DIO/FP-17/1/21 9/1/2022 84,398 -
BGIC/DIO/MV/PV/CERT-0095/02/2021 47212021 21,850 21,610
BGIC/DIQ/MV/PV/CERT-839/11/21 11/11/2021 5,244 -
Prime islami life insurance limited - 35.000
Total 482,260 298,920
8 Investment in FDR: Tk. 527,369,474
Details are as under Amount in Taka
Particuiars Pneipol LoiSe 30 June 2022]] 30 June 2021
Rupali Bank Ltd. (FDR) 85,459,380 641,627 86,101,007 101,802,032
National Bank Ltd. (FDR) - 59,359,375
IFIC Bank Ltd. (FDR) - 25,608,599
First Security Iskami Bank Ltd. (FDR) 109,568,320 6,929,520 116,497,840 88,295,081
Al Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. - 48,707,488
Bangladesh Development Bank Ltd. (FDF 174,218,800 8,144,934 182,363,734 :
BRAC Bank Ltd. (FDR) 138,069 7,401 145,470 138,069
UNION Bank Ltd. (FDR) - 58,577,851
Southeast Bank Ltd. (FDR) 123,113,786 19,147,637 142,261,423 135,321,362
NRB Bank Ltd.(FDR) - 79.678.734
Total 527,369,474 597,488,591
9 Cash and Cash Equivalents: Tk. 26,027,854
The above balance is made up as follows:
Particulars Amount in Taka
30 June 2022 ][ 30 June 2021
Cash in Hand 140,545 27,293
Cash at Bank
Janata Bank, Local office, Dhaka. STD A/C0887 925 18,170
Janata Bank, Ishurdi, Pabna, CD A/C No-373 - 1,511
Janata Bank A/C CD 33066246 - 782
Agrani Bank, Ishurdi, Pabna. CD A/C No-1085 503 503
Agrani Bank CD A/C No-1773 5,685 5,685
Agrani Bank CD A/C No-1532 7,605 7.605
Agrani Bank STD A/C No-152 12,241 12,241
Prime Bank,Ishurdi,Pabna CD A/C 60008502 949 (308)
Dutch-Bangla Bank Ltd. STD A/C-5122 - 2,688
Dutch-Bangla Bank Ltd. Dilkkusha,CD A/C-1011100055085 1,133,524
Prime Bank,IBB Dilkusha STD A/C 90036875 8,949,304 1,012,312
Standard Chartered Bank, CD A/C-01-1149595-01 = 100,000
Union Bank Lid. STD A/C-003-121-000298 . 473
Prime Bank,IBB Dilkusha STD A/C-3108315011216 123,531 989,647
IFIC Bank Ltd.Stock Exchange Br. SND A/C -018003082004 | 14,973,834 6,165,912
Al Arafah Islami Bank Ltd.Panthapath BrSND A/C-0841020010647 3,108 =
NRB Bank Ltd.Dilkusha Br. SND A/C -1081030009018 676,100 -
Total cash at bank 25,887,309 8,317,421
Total 26,027,854 8,344,714
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Amount in Taka

30 Jure 2022 || 30 June 2021
10.01 Avthorized Capital : Tk, 500,000,000
50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Te. 10/- each. 500,000,000 £00,000,000
10.02 Issued Subscribed and Paid up Capital: Tk, 222,985,490
a) i) 590,165 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each. 5,901,650 5,901,430
i} 21,708,384 Bonus Shares of Tk, 10/- each, 217.083.840 217,082,840
Totel _ 222,985490 _ 222 985490
b) Movement of share capital
Opening balance 222,985,470 222,985 450
Add: Issue of bonus share during the year - .
Tctal 222‘98\5;490 222,985 4%0
c) Composition of Shareholding : T
Year-2021-22 Year-2020-21
Grouping of the shareholders Shareholdings Ta Shareheoldings %
1} Government 1,623 0.01% 6,196 0.03%
2) Sponsors/Directors 5.716,05% 25.63% 2,850,158 12.78%
3) Financicl Institutions 4,450,704 19.96% 3,000,721 01%
4] General Public 12,130,163 54 40% 16,441,474 78.18%
Total _ 22,278,549 100% 22|298554? 100%
d) Detalls of the Shareholding are given below: ’
The distribution schedule showing the number of Shareholders and their sharenolding in percentage has been
disclosed below as the requirement of the “Listing Regulation” of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited. '
Range of Holdings No.cf % of No. of Shares % of Share
in number of Shares Sharenolders | Shareholders 2020-2021 Capital
1 tc 499 1470 56.80% 153406 (.49%
500 to 5000 741 256.63% 1273681 571%
5001 to 10000 130 5.02% 1001170 449%
10001 to 20000 120 4.64% 17302654 7.76%
20001 to 30000 25 0.97% 619792 2.78%
20001 to 40000 23 0.89% BO7467 3.62%
40001 to 50000 8 0.31% 350245 1.57%
5000 to 100000 39 1.51% 2753775 12.25%
100001 to above 32 1.24% 13608747 61.03%
Total 2588 100% 22,298,549 100%
e) Allshares have been fully called ond paid up in cash. There was no preference shares issued by tne compaury.
f)  Market Price:

1

12

The shares of the Company are listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and quoted market price was at Tk,

119.40 per share in fhe Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited on 30 June, 2022. During the year 2021-2022 the low price
ard high price per share were Tk 41.40 and Tk. * 23.00 respectively.

Revaluation keserve:Tk. 9,079,807 Amount in Taka

The above balance is made up a; foliows: 30 Junz 2022 || 30 June 2021
Opening Balarce 34,948,607 34,948,002
Less:Accumulated Depreciciion (25.868.795) _  {25.040.149)
Closing Balance 9,079,807 9,908,433

Fixed assets of the company were revaluec on 30-06-1988 by M.A.Mallik & Ca. Chartered Accountants Book Value
[Cost-Dep.) of assets was Tk.14,185000 and were revalued at Tk.204.801.00C ot the camying depreciaiion the
revaluation reserve stanc Tk. ,079,807 ond written down value of revaluction assets stand Tk. 9,079.307 as on 39-0é-

2622, The detailed position as on June 30th, 2022 is shown under Revcluation of Fixed Asset, Schedule-2, which i
equol to above stated Reserve on Revaluation of Fixed Assets.

Land 1,554,675 1.554.675
Fixed Assets other than land 7.525.132 8,353,758
Total

9,079,807 7,908,433
Tax Holiday Reserve: Tk. 10,747,334

Tris represents reserve made on protit of the Unit No-02 of the company which enjoyed Tax holiday up to June, 30
2004 as per Tax law.

Paiticulars . . Amount In Toka
The above balance is made up as follows: 30 June 2022 || 30 june 2021
Qnening Bulance 10,747,334 10.747,334

Current year
Closing Balance

10,747,334

10,747,334 10,747,334

lnit Me-02 of the Company enjoved Tax Hoiday up to June 30, 2004, As such Tax roidoy Reserve has nat beor
provided during the year under audi* (2021-2022)
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Retained Earning: Tk. (31,868,574)
The above balance is made up as follows:
Pariculars
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Opening Balance [52.965.918) (57.502.617)
Dep.on Revaluation of Fixed Asset fransfered to Retained Earnings 828,626 930,720

Net Profit / Loss during the year 20,268,718 5.755.334

Prior year's adjustment for :

Inventory audit fee . 70,000

VAT on inventory audit fee . 10,500
Dividend Paid - [2.229.855)
Closing balance (31,868,574) (52,965,918)

Long Term Loan Fund:Tk. 175,466,710
The above balance is made up as follows:
Particulars

Amount in Taka Amount in Taka

Amount in Taka

Amount in Taka

30 June 2022 30 June 2022 30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Agrani Bank Ltd. Industral Loan-Principal: 1st BMRE 2nd BMRE Total Total
Opening Bolonce 36,340,940 50,471,371 86,812,311 86,812,311
Add: Received from Agrani Bank - - & "
Less: Payment - - - -
Total: 36,340,740 50,471,371 86,812,311 86,812,311
Agrani Bank Ltd. Industrial Loan-Interest:
Opening Balance 39,538,958 12,772,364 52,311,322 52,311,322
Less: Payment - - = 2
Sub-total 39,538,958 12,772,364 52,311,322 52,311,322
Add: Provision for Interest | Pls. refer to note
no. 14.01) - - 36,343,077

Total 39,538,958 12,772,344 88,654,399 52,311,322

Total ?E:BHEB 98 635243:?35 1 ?E‘ 466,710 1391 23!633

Total outstanding loan to Agrani Bank was Tk, 10,5584,3%91 (Long term loan Tk.B86,812311+ Bank overdraft
Tk.18,772,080/-) os of 13/4/2021. At present there is o money suit against the loan. For this reason, no interest was
charged from financial year 2009-2010 to 2020-2021 Management Alhagj Textile Mills Limited fried to solve the matier
on the basis negotiation according to prevailing law of the country.

According to ortha Rhin Adalat Agrani Bank can realize 3 times of the loan or amount settled by the honorable
court. Management wrote a letter to Agrani Bank on 13-04-2021 stating that they will pay 3 times of the loan (Loan
balance +interest as per book = Tk. 314,753,173/-) to avoid money suit.

Under the above circumstances management decided to provide interest on the above loan as per loan
agreement, The above provision was made for the period from 13-04-2021 to 30-04-2022.

Agrani Bank Ltd. Ishurdi Branch, Pabna in its bank account statement has shown the following balances as on 30,

06. 2011, Thereafter the company has received neither any bank statement nor any bank advice in this respect.

Bank balance position of these long term loans as per Bank Statement as on 30th. June 2011 is as follows:

Agrani Bank Ltd. Industrial Loan Principal: Tst BMRE -30  2nd BMRE- 30 June. Total- 30
June, 2011 201 June, 2011
Amount in Taka  Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
Principal 46,002,622 36,796,719 82,799,341
Principal - 14,024,652 14,024,652
Total Principal 456,002,622 50,821.37 76,823,993
Interest Grace period 7.812,145 8,023,302 15,835,447
Interest Monitorial period 34,792,408 15,145,272 49,937,680
Interest General period 36,148,851 - 36,148,851
Tetal Inferest 78,753,404 23,148,574 101,921,978
Total (Principal & Interest) 124,756,026 73,989,945 198,745,971
Excess shown by the bank 48,876,128 10,?46& 59,622,338

Lond, Building, Plant and Machinery etc of the company has been mortgaged with Agrani Bank Ltd. Ishurdi Branch,

Pabna against loan.
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14.01 As ecrlier mentioned in note 1.01 the company was denationalized and returned back to its previous owner but at
the time of transfer a liability of Tk.22,920,805 was shown in the joint audit report. The transferee (owner] observed
that their remain inconsistency of the accounts which was raised to BTMC for rectification. After several discussion
with Bangladesh Textile Mills Corporation, Bangladesh Textile Mills Association, Government and Bark the matter
was resolved and a tripartite agreement was signed among the company, bank and BTMC. According to that
tricartite agreement the liability was fully paid on 30 September 2007. Meanwhile during the period from the year
1982 to 2000 the Bank gave pressure to repay the loan. Due to continuous pressure from the bank on 12 January
1989 both the company and bank reached at a conclusion that a special fund will be created transferring money
from cash credit loan and bank will pay interest to the fund account at the rate applicable for cash credit loan.
Based on the condition of the understanding a fund of Tk.20,900,000 was created through transferring amount from
the cash credit account during the period from 22 January 1989 to 16 July 1992, Subsequently as per instruction of
the bank the amount of the fund converted fo Fixed Deposit and kept it to the bank with lien mark. Afterrepayment
of full amount of ligbility of BTMC the FDR money including interest upto 31 May 2008 arrived amounting to
Tk.249.542,178. The bank agreed to pay only Tk.50,764,791.Due to not agreed to pay caolculaied amount of
Tk.249.542,178, stopping the transaction from cash credit account and lock up the pledged godown the Company
filed Writ Petition No.5129 of 2009, claiming interest on Special Fund created by the Mill against the bank before the
Honorable High Court. The Honorable High Court passed judgment on 15.02.2011 direcling the Agrani Bank Lid. to
pay company’s deposit in Special Fund together with interest at "prachalita hare” on such deposit. In this context
Agrani Bank Ltd. has filed an appeal against the order to the Honorable Supreme Court, Appellate Division. After
completion of various legal procedure The Honorable Appellate Division passed judgment on 20.01.2014 that 'In the
instant case the interest to be caolculaled on long term FDR. The Leave-petitioner was also directed fo pay inferest
on the FDR as per the rate of interest applicable to long term FDR within 1{one) month of the availability of the
certified copy of the order. Thereafter, passing the stipulated period, the company filed an application for issuance
of Supplementary Rule. Afler hearing the same the Honorable High Court Division fixed the date for hearing
referring Writ Petition No.5129 of 2009. and Contempt Pefition No 151 of 2013 a revised claim on the basis of
judgment of Tk.52.56 crore including interest for the period fram 22 January 1989 o 27 February 2014 was raised but
the bank has poid Tk.81.125.001only again a demand of Tk.544,513,560.32 (Tk.481,311,503.17 + Tk.63,202,057.15) for
payment of special fund amount remained deposited with Agrani Bank Limited, Ishwardi Branch, Pabna, and
interest thereon at the rate of interest of Long Term FOR from the date of depeosit to 31-08-2015, inclusive of inferest
of Tk.63,202,057.15 for the period from 01.03.2014 to 31.08.2015. This amount after deducting Tk.81.125,002.00
.dready received by the company, stands at Tk.463,388,558.32. The supreme court of Bangladesh, Appeliate
Division has disposed of civil petition for leave to Appeal No. 405 of 2019 submitted by Agrani Bank Ltd. on appeal
from the impugned order dated 14.01.2019 passed by the High Court Division in contempt petition no. 151 of 2013
that referring with petition no. 5129 of 2009 and contempt petition no. 151 of 2013 Agrani Bank Ltd. paid to Alngj
Textile Mills Ltd. Tk, 8,11,25,002 on 25.02.2014 which has been mentioned earlier, On 5th March 2019 the bank was
directed to ensure immediate payment of Tk. 25,00,00,000 and accordingly payment was made . Again on 7th May
2019 the bank was directed to pay amounting to Tk, 108,391,457 and accordingly payment was made. So, tolal Tk.
439,516,459 was received by the company and the instant civil petition for leave to appeal is disposed of. In this
conneclion Agrani bank Lid, lshwardi Branch, Pabna filed the Case no. 89/13 doted 28-11-2013 against the
company (Alhaj Textfile Mills Lid.) together with its Chairman and Directors as defaulter for payrment of dues on long
term loan against 1st. BMRE & 2™, BMRE for Tk.289,847,500.64 and Short term Loans claiming for Tk.77.674,358.80
being total as Tk.367.521,859.44 as on 20.11.2013 plus interest upto the date of payment to be received instead of
book balance of Tk.13%,123,633 and Tk.18,772,080 respectively. Through writ pefition no: 6799 of 2014 of the 18'th day
of July 2014 the Honorable High Court Division has granted stay of Artha Rin Case no: 89 of 2013. It is worthwhile to
disclose that in the prayer for staying the Artha Rin case it was mentioned that it is established upto the Apex Court
of the country that the respond Bank did not pay the dues of the petitioner and the matter is now for the disposal
before the contempt court and keeping pefitioners money in their hand filing Artha Rin case for realization of their
loan is against the spirit of the Artha Rin Adalat Ain 2003, As certified by the legal advisor of the company that since
the further proceedings of the Artha Rin case has been stayed by the Hon'ble couri as such any transacthion in
connection with the loan amount including charging inferest upon the loan without prior permission of the Hon'ble
court is amount te viclation of the court order and as such illegal. Necessary steps are being taken to seiled the
issue. Under the above circumstance firstly since the interest cannot be charged on loan due to having stay order
as certified by the legal advisor, secondly due to having various method to determine the amount for seftling the
old outstanding loan so ot this slage it is not possible to ascertain the amount reliably which is essential for
accounting the expenses and liability as per International Accounting Standard. thirdly since the disposal of
contempt petition No. 151 of 2013 is connected with the repayment of loan and finglly the bank has subimitted
review petition for review the judgment of ihe Honorable Supreme Court therefor the whole emount as received by
the order of the Honorable Supreme Court of Bangladesh Appeliate Division Tk. 439,516,459 has been considered as

liability.The stay order has been vacated by tne Hon'ble Court on 0§-11-2021,
m
W& N\
k& \E\
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15.00 Deferred Tax Liability : Tk .4,879,505 Amount in Taka
The above balance is made up as follows: 30 June 2022 || 30 June 2021
Particulars
Opening Balance 6,000,026 6,928,220
Add: (Reduction)/Addition during the year  (Note-15.01) (1,120,521} (928,194)
Closing Balance 4,879,505 6,000,026
15.01 Calculation of Deferred Tax:
Particulars
Depreciable asset as per Financial Statements 58,473,132 64,987,604
Depreciable asset as per tax base (25,943,095) (24,987,432)
Temporary difference 32,530,037 40,000,174
Applicable tax rate 15% 15%
Deferred tax liability as at end of the year 4,879,505 6,000,024
Opening Balance 6,000,026 6,928,220
Reduction during the year 1,120,521 928,194
16.00 Advance Against Sales
The above balance is made up as follows:
SLNO |Name of the party |Address
1 Banijjo bitan Pawra market,kumarkhali,kushtia 100,000 e
Total 100,000 -
17.00 Security and Other Deposits: Tk. 19,822
Cetails are as under
Particulars
Homes Enterprise 10,000 10,000
Bhai Bhai Traders 5,000 5.000
Ruiican Insect Control Co. 4,822 4,822
Total 19,822 19,822
18.00 Other Current Liabilities : Tk. 447,197,574
Details are as under
Particulars
Trade Creditors (Note -18.01) 5,297,927 11,940,216
Liabilities for VAT 1,566,845 1,706,901
Unpaid salary & wages 65,923 65,923
Income Tax Deduction from Parties 695,371 650,352
Sramik Kallan Tahabil 55,051 55,051
Received against legal claim(Agrani Bank) (Note-14.01) 439,516,459 439,516,457
Total 447,197,574 453,934,902
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Amount in Taka ¢
30 June 2022 [| 30 June 2021 |

18.01 Trade Creditors: Tk . 5,297,927

Particulars
M/s.|A. Salam Engineering Works 56,853 56,853
M/s.[Alnagj Jute Mills Limited 333,274 333274 |
M/s.|Acule ERP Solution 15,000 -
M/fs.|Ayan Mill Store 40,848 40,843
M/s. [Arthashuchak - 3.840
M/s.|A M Trading Company Lid. 112,079 41,977
M/s.|BDCOM Online Lid. 4,458 -
M/s.|Bearing Palace - 51,641
r/s. |Banijjo Protidin - 36,864
M/s.|Banga Yam Trading - 6,981,770
M/s.|Cargo Control Bangladesh Ltd. 147,632 167.632
M/s.|Chand mansion (H/O rent) 71.887 71,887
M/s.|Dana Engineers International L. - 301,997
M/s.|Favourite Security Service Ltd, 166,900 103,400
Md. |Hasnat Quaiyum [Advocale) 356,500 356,500
M/s. [Kelam Traders 142,976 50,2817
M/s.|K.S.Collection 162,942 600
M/s |Lipika | 1,44CB75 544,322
M/s.|Macca Auto Paper Cone Product 1,344 261 1,605,202
/5. |Masterline technologies pvt lid. - 67,500
M/s. |Mozaddedia Tarikat Mission Press 451 451
M/s.IMonaj Air Technology Ltd. 2,476 2.47¢
Md. M M Enterprise 36,743 =
Md. [Mizanur Rahman (shahjadpur) 1,825 13,409
M/s.|Paper Cone Industries 184 394 531,93/
M/s.|Puji Bazar I ; 5,000 5,000
M/s.[Popular Advertising Ltd. 14,646 14,646
M/{s.|Protiva Enterprise - 74.86C
M/s.|Shah Paran Auto Mobile 3.710 3,710
M/s.|Standard Spring Industriss 191,166 450,759
M/s.|Sumaiya Enterplise 261,929 -
M/5.|SAR Internatioral BD 176,442 -
M/s.[Share Bazar News .com < 3,840
M/s.|Star Enterprise 2.720 2,?2;’.1_[
Total | : 5,297,927 11,940,214
17 Unpaid Dividend : Amount in Toka Amount In Taka
Deftails cre as under 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Onening balance 971,691 730,451
Add.refunded 15,082 66,727
Add.Dividend declared - 2,229,855
986,973 3.227.G33
Less: Paid to Shareholders . (248,251) (2,255,142)
Less : Transferred to Copital itarket Stabilization Fund 617,501} -
Closing bolance 101,221 ©71.891

As per the BSEC directive No-BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-385/03 dated 14 Jaruary 2021 we transierred
the undistributed amount Tk.617,501 to the Cacital Market Stabilization Fund dated 19-09-2021.
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20.00 Provision for Taxes: Tk. 57,265,162

Details are as under

Particulars

The above balance is made up as follows:
Provision for Accounting Year (2003-2004)
Provision for Accounting Year (2007-2008)

Provision for Accounting Year (2007-2008) (Interest)
Provision for Accounting Year (2008-2009)
Provision for Accounting Year (2008-2009) (Interest)
Provision for Accounting Year (2009-2010)
Provision for Accounting Year (2010-2011)

Provision for Accounting Year {2011-2012)
Provision for Accounting Year (2012-2013)
Provision for Accounting Year (2013-2014)
Provision for Accounting Year (2014-2015)
Provision for Accounting Year (2015-2016)
Provision for Accounting Year (2016-2017)
Provision for Accounting Year (2017-2018)
Provision for Accounting Year (2018-2019)
Provision for Accounting Year (2019-2020)
Provision for Accounting Year (2020-2021)
Provision for Accounting Year (2021-2022)

Balance of unadjusted deposited advance amount by party
Sub Total

21.00 Provisions for Other Liabilities and Charges: Tk. 13,314,537

21.00

Details are as under

Particulars

Salary & wages clearing account (Note-21.01)
Provision for other expenses [Note-21.02)
Provision for doubtful asset (Mote-21.03)
Total

Salary and Wages Clearing Account: Tk. 3,542,064
Details are as under

Particulars

Salary of Staff & Officers :

For Head office (month of June,2022)

For Factory (month of June,2022)

Wages :

For the month of June, 2022

Total

76

FAMES &R
Chartered Accountants

Amount in Taka

30 June 2022 || 30 June 2021

40,961 40,961
199,502 199.502
76,840 76,840
1,219,625 1.219.625
182944 182,944
5,000 5,000
2,506,258 2,506,258
1,631,810 1,631,810
2,712,130 2712130
800,176 4,800,174
5,792,437 6,792,437
6,353,096 6,353.096
7,644,358 7,644,358
4,041,558 4,041,558
1,469,608 1,469,606
4,459,781 4,459,781
2,080,670 2,080,670
9,032,442 -
15,968 15,948
3,542,066 1,052,277
5,745,001 2,305,319
4,027,470 4,027,470
13,314,537 7.385,066
443,119 309,496
515,960 307,235
2,582,987 435,546
3,542,066 1,052,277




21.02

21.03

Provisions for Other Expenses: Tk. 5,745,001
The above balance is made up as follows:
Particulars
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Amount in Taka

30 june 2022 || 30 June 2021

MD'S Remuneration and TDS (June,22) 135,000 140,00G
TOS on Honorarium of Chairman 9.600
Audit Fee 200,000 278,000
AGM Expenses 75,004 241,227
Annual Subscription of BTMA for Memiership 48,160 -
Audit ccmmittee meeting fee (TDS) 4,400 -
Board meeting fee (TDS) 20,200 b
CDBL (annual fee; 106,000 -
CDBL {ponus share fransfer fee) 50.765 50,765
Courier Bill - 1.913
Entertainment Expenses (DGM Office) - 3,000
Gas Bill 3,497,880 38,720
Holding Tax = 180,000
Head office Telephone Bill | June'22) 8.558 4,610
Head office electiic Bill ( June'22) 10,493 8,987
Head Office Internet Bill (May,21 and June,21) - 8,600
Legal Fee and Expenses 190.000 260.000
Mill Electricity Bill {June,22) 689,807 331,737
Mill Telephone Bill - 1,474
Mill Internet Bill { June,22) 7.200 2,400
Mill Dish Line Bill 1,800 600
NRC Committee meeting fee - 32,000
Petrol for Vehicie (Car No-05%90) - 8,000
Petroi for Vehicle (Car No-0953) 35,600 26,70C
Roaster Duty Bill - 14,000
VAT on meeting fee 79,600 -
VAT on writ peftition fee - 13,000
VAT on Audit Fee 30,000 99,750
VAT on Sales of Yarn 553,834 553,834
Totai 5,745,001 2,305 319
Provision for doubfful asset: TK. 4,027,470

Details as under

Provision for debtors (as per last) 498,379 498,379
Provision for stores in transit (as per last) 3.529.091 2,529,091
Total 4,027,470 4,027,470

The amount Tk.35,29,091 represents payment made to import of 60 M/ton South Brazilicn Raw
Coftton from U.S. Fibers International Ltd. UK. For this purpose a letter of credit bearing no
4006/408/11/2001 was opened in Agrani Bank Principal Brancih on 21-08-2001. The entire
quantity of raw material was lost in Singapore sea port.The company filed case against ihe
supplier U.S. Fibers Infernational Lid. in the court of 5th Joint District Juage, Dhaka bearing
money suit no. 23 of 2002, The company cluimed against the supplier amounting ¢ Tk.
1.01,48,575 due to huge firancial lose on different accounts. The case is still pending in trie
court.Considering the circumstances provision for the entire crmount of Tk. 35.29.091 nhas been
made in the financial statements due to doustful of recovery.
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22.00 Bank Overdraft: Tk. 18,772,080
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Amount in Taka

22.01

22.02

22.03

23.00

24.00

30 June 2022 || 30 June 2021

Particulas Notes

Agrani Bank - Cash Credit 22,01 37,032,249 37,032,249
Agrani Bank - Cash Credit (Pledge) - 22.02 (18,260,169) (18,260,149)
Total Cash Credit / Bank Overdraft 18,772,080 18,772,080

Agrani Bank Ltd. Ishurdi Branch, Pabna in its bank account statement has shown the following
bolances as on 30. 06. 2011. Thereafter company has not received neither any bank

statement nor any bank advice in this respect.

Bank balance position of these short term loans as per Bank Statement as on 30th. June 2012
was as follows:

__Amountin
30 June 2012
Particulars T Ypo
Balance of CC-[Hypo) 53,455,913
Balance of CC-(Pledge) .
Total T 534552913

Excess shown by the bank 53,455,913

No provision had been made by the company for the excess amount claimed above by the
bank as per Bank Statement.

This is to disclose here that Agrani bank Ltd, Ishardi Branch, Pubna filed the Case no. 89/13
dated 28-11- 2013 against Alhgj Textile Mills Ltd. together with its Chairman and Directors as
defaulter for payment of interest on above CC (Hypo) total due of Tk 77,674,358.80 as on
20.11.2013 plus interest upto the date of payment to be received.

Company feels that its claim referred under note No. 14.01 is mare than sufficient to cover its
bank overdraft and long term loan liabilities if any arise under the judgment.

Worker's Profit Participation Fund: Tk. 2,145,050
The balance is made up as follows:
Particulas

Amount in Taka
30 June 2022 || 30 June 2021

Opening balance 695,390 638,189
Add.Provision for the year 1,409,032 695,390
Add.Cheque issued to Bangladesh sramik

kailayan foundation but not collected 60,628 -
Less:Transferred to respective fund - (638,189}
Closing Balance 2,145,050 £95,390

During the financial year 2020-2021 the mill was closed as a result no payment has been made
during the year

Net Asset Value Per Share (NAVPS): Tk.9.52
The NAVPS is made up as follows:
Particulas

Total Assets & Properties Value

931,642,150 872,227,299
Less Total Liabilities 719,281,663 680,135,530
Total Net Assels 212,360,487 192,091,769
Total number of Share 22,298,549 22,298,549
Net Assets Value Per Share (NAVPS) 9.52

78



25.00

25.01

25.02

26.00

26.01

26.02

Turnover (Amount) :
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ltem wise details are as under 30 June 2022 30 June 2621
Particulars Qly(Kg) Amountin Taka  Qiy(kg) ~ AMOU™In
Carded Spun Yam 753,657 348,606,816 439,600 152,232,437
Oren-End Yarn 20,185 2,865,490 1,361 220,928
Total 773,842 351,472,308 440,761 152 453,365
Turnover in quantity (Kg) : 2021-2022
Production type Opening  Production  Closing Stock  Loss/Damage S(::‘ees\:i:éirng
{a) (b) (<) (d) (a+b-c-d)
Carded Spun Yarn 111,750 804,231 161,980 346 753,657
Open-End Yarn 907 49,581 30,301 - 20,185
Total 112,657 853,812 192,281 3446 773,842
Turnover in quantity (Kg) : 2020-2021
Production type Opening  Production Closing Steck  Loss/Damage Sc:'l.leesvd::rng
©) (b) () (d) (a+b-c-d}
Carded Spun Yarn 556,840 3,946 111,750 8.075 440,901
Open-End Yamn - 907 907 - -
Total 556,840 4,853 112,657 8,075 440,961
Cost of Sales : Tk. 308,849,123 Amount in Taka
Details of Cost of Sales are as under: 30 June 2022| 30 June 2021
Particulars
Opening work-in-process 2,499,429 -
Raw Materials Consumption 254,086,962 3.076,G38
Waste cotton consumption 59,338 61,103
{-) Closing Work-in-Process (4,752,027} (2,499,627}
(-} Wastage Recoverable (620.413) 12,469)
Total Censumption (a) 251,273,489 635,043
Factory wages and Allowances 26.01 25,362,318 2.556,261
Factory Salary and Allowances 26.02 8,193,230 4,501,702
Store and Spares 26.03 11.635,778 476,472
Other Factory Overhead 26.04 47,430,318 18,28%,119
Total cost (b) 92,621,694 25,923,755
COST OF PRODUCTION (a+b) 343,895,183 26,558,793
Opening Stock of Finished Goods 32,670,512 167.146,25]
Closing Stock of Finished Goods (67.718,572)  [32.570 51
Total Cost of Sales 308,849,123  161,035.257
Factory Wages and Allowances: Tk. 25,362,318
Details are as under
Particulars
Wages and allowances 25,215,217 2,485,993
Borus 147,101 70,263
Total 25,362,318 2556261
Factory Salary and Allowances: Tk. 8,193,280
Detatlls are as under
Pariculars
Saicry and allowances 7,921,829 4,246,135
Eonus 271,451 255,768
Total 8,193,280 4,501,903
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26.03

26.04

27.00

Stores and Spares: Tk. 11,635,778
Details are as under

Particulars

Spare Parts

Packing Materials

Lubricants

Electrical Materials

Building Maintenance Materials
Other Maintenance Materials

Other Factory Overhead: Tk. 47,430,318

Details are as under
Particulars

Electricity and Power
Gas Bill

Sur charge on gas bill
Depreciation

Depreciation on re-valuation.of Fixed Assets

Repairs and Maintenance of Machinery(out side parties)
Repairs and Maintenance of Electric Equipment
Repairs and Maintenance of Boundary Wall

Repairs and Maintenance of Factory Roof

Repairs and Maintenance of Gas Line

Rent,Rate and Taxes - Factory
Insurance Premium

Printing and Stationery

Postage & Telephone

Gas Generator Operating Expenses

Administrative Expenses: Tk. 16,159,789

Details are as under
Particulars

Salary and allowances
Bonus

Leave Pay

MD's Remuneration
Chairman's Honorarium
Board Meeting Fee

Audit Committee Meeting fee
Purchase Committee Meeting Fee
NRC Meeting Fee

Repairs of Vehicals

Printing and Stationery
Uniform

Medical Expenses
Rent,Rates and Taxes
Travelling and Conveyances
Petrol for Car

Electricity and Power
Depreciation

Courier Bill

Internet Expenses

Telephone

Entertainment

Legal Fees and Expenses
Inventory audit fee
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Amount in Taka

30 June 2022[ 30 June 2021

6,213,106 151,851
3,678,816 152,397
490,020 41,438
887,715 65,110
145,824 =
220,297 65,676
11,635,778 476,472
4,940,227 2,422,214
25,831,098 214,615
- 407,504
11,874,565 11,549,929
828,626 230,720
1,885,357 776,477
11,405 2,780
18,400 11,240
21,250 2,530
- 16,000
180,000 180,000
1,830,204 1,857,889
= 3,645
9,186 7.376
= 6,000
47,430,318 18,389,119
5,460,476 4,375,569
337,016 520,909
98,851 103,238
1,375.000 1,200,000
315,000
532,400 320,000
144,000 110,000
37,500 90,000
49,200 32,000
61,225 93.219
369,090 74,943
4,000 4,000
2,456 13,150
1,054,800 951,432
187,526 139.167
826,720 437.571
91,643 84,419
470,130 528,009
59.789 36,828
77,656 79.170
91,026 77.140
289,054 190,117
1,404,534 1,131,837
= 40,000




28.00

29.00

30.00

Accounts audit fee

Audit Fee for Compliance Certification
Annual Subscription

CC Camera Installation Expense
Bank Tharges and Excise Duty
Miscellaneous Expenses
Adverisement Expenses

Annual Fee for CDBL

Water and Gas Supplies Expenses
Sanitation Expenses

Annual General Meeting expenses
Corporate Sccial Responsibility Exp.
Car Parking Expenses

VAT Expenses

Service Charge of Head Office
Other Servicing (Office equipment)
Donaticn to Trust

Website Expenses

Dish Line Communication Exp.
Garage Rent

Welfare Expenses

Total

Selling and Distribution Expenses: Tk.261,303

Detaiis are as under

Particulars

Salary and allowances

Bonus

Rent for Godown and shop
Delivery and distribution expenses
Excsie Duty

Sales Promotion Expenses
Loading and unloading expenses
Other expenses

Total

Interest Income:Tk. 35,626,991
Details as under

Particulars

Interest on STD A/C

Interest on FDR

Total

Other income:Tk.2,853,646
Details are as under

Waste cotton and scrape sale
unused building sole
Tree sale

Pond lease

Insurance claim received
Adjustment of advance against sales
Adjustmernt of trade creditors
Total
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Amount in Taka
30 June 2022| 30 June 2021

200,000 195,000
C 90,500
209,653 214,670
400 560
566,613 991,373
5710 .
372,680 1,183,102
106,000 122,176
97,200 97.200
- 1.675
- 157,740
209,285 57,183
42,000 42,000
831,047 568,599
226.800 226.800
162,199 85,953
- 100,000
39,600 24,800
19.510 12,600
27.000 36,600
3.000

16,159,789 15,158,049

173.417 578,140
42,820 60,484
17,000 204,000

- 58,940

192 454,227
21,400

27,874 100.873
261,303 1,478,264
496,514 268,424

35,130,477 35,548,491
35,626,991 35,817,115

806,325 .
2,047,341 :
- 150,000
150,236

1,442,630

: 330,769

- 980,591

2,853,666 23,254,270
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31.00 Provision for Income Tax: Tk. 9,032,442 Amount in Takc

Calculation are as under 30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Particulars

Operating Income:

Total Loss (10,140,986)  (25,218,185)
WPPF (1,409.032) (695,390)
Income after WPPF (11,550,018)  (25,913,575)
Tax on operating income @ 15% (A) - -
Interest Income 35,626,991 35817,115
Total Non-Operating Income: 35,626,991 35,817,115
Tax on interest income@ 22.50% 8,016,073 8,058,351
Waste cotton and scrape sale 806,325 -
unused building sale 2,047,341 -
Tree sale - 150,000
Pond lease - 180,250
Insurance claim received - 1,642,630
Adjustment of advance against sales - 330,799
Adjustment of frade creditors - 280,591
Total Other Income 2,853,666 3.254,270
Tax on other income®@ 22.5% 642,075 732,211
Income from Investment in Shares (Dividend) 1,250,000 750,000
Tax on Dividend Income @ 20% (C) 250,000 150,000
Tax on depreciation of Revaluvation 124.294 139,608
Total Provision for Income Tax 9,032,442 9,080,670

Tax has been provided applying the tax rates as per prevailing income tax law and rules.

32.00 Basic Earning Per Share (EPS) - Disclosure Under IAS 33 "Earning Per Share”
The computation of EPS is given below:
Particulars
Earning attributable to the Ordinary Shareholders
[Net Profit/(Loss) after tax]
Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year 22,298,549 22,298,549
Basic EPS 0.91 0.26

20,268,718 5,755,334

Due to increase the interest income of the company increased profitability resulting increasing Earning
Per Share.

33.00 Reconciliation of net profit with cash flows from operating activities.

Particulars

Net Profit 20,268,718 5,755,334
Add: Depreciation 13,173,321 13,008,658
Add: Increase of current liubility (except Loan) 3,965,764 981,124
Add: Increase of Non-current liability 36,343,077 -
Less: Non operating income (39,730,657) (39.821,385)
Less (increase of Current Assets (except investment) (114,585,412) 103,561,305
Less: Deferred Tax (1,120,521) (928,194)
Net cash from operating activities (81,685,710) 82,556,842
Due to increase the interest income of the company resulting Net Operating Cash Flow Per share has
increased.

34.00 Calculation of net operating cash flow

Net cash from operating (81,685.710) 82,556,842
Total number of shares 22,298,549 22,298,549
Net operating cash flow per share (Restated) (3.66) 3.70
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35.00 Financiai Instruments and Related Disclosures Under IAS 32 "Financial Instrurnents Presentation’

Set out below is a year-end balance of carrying amounts (book value) of all financial assets & liabilities
(financial instruments):

Interest Bearing

Particulars wﬁ?ﬁnug:e Maturity after One E’::::i:;p}r:'::: Total Taka
year
veaqr
Financial Assets
Trade Debtors - - 998,379 298,379
Investment in FOR 527,369,474 - - 527,369,474
Cash & Cash Equivalents - - 26,027,854 26,027,854
Total Financial Assets 527,369,474 - 27,026,233 554,395,707
Financial Liabilities
Advance against Sales 2 - 100,000 109,000
Security and Other Deposits - - 19,822 19,822
Other Current Liabilities - - 447,197,576  447.197,576
Unpaid Dividend 101,221 101,221
Provision for Taxes - - 37,265,162 57,265,162
Worker's Profit Participation Fund - - 2,165,050 2,165,050
Bank Qverdraft 18,772,080 - - 18,772,080 °
Long Term Bank Loan - 175,466,710 175,466,710
Total Financial Liabilifies 18,772,080 - 682,315,541 701087621
Net Financial Assets/(Liabilities): 508,597,394 - (655,289,303) (144,691,914}

Carrying Amounts (Book Value)
The basis of carrying amounts have beeri stated in accounting policies (Note-2)

Fair Value

Mancgement believe thai the fair value of all financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying
value.

Market Value

The market value of all financial instuments are not available as these are not traded on organized
markets in standardized form.

Interest Rate Risk Exposure )
Company's borrowings are subject to market rate fluctuations which are reviewed with lenders on an
ongeing basis.

Concentration on Credit Risk

The company's management believe that there was no significant concentration of credit risk in trade
debtors.

Fereign Currency Risk

The company is subject to foreign currency fluctuations as the local currency (Taka) varies with US Dolars
and other foreign currencies.

7S
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36.00 Related party disclosure

A)

accordance of 1A5-24:
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The details of related party transactions during the year along with the relationship is illustrated below in

Particulars 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Relationship  with  the Transacted | Transacted
Name of the party |company Nature of tfransaction amount Tk. | amount Tk.
Md.Talha Managing Director Remuneration 850,000 1,200,000
Md.Abdullah Bokhari|Chairman Honorarium - 315,000
Md.Mizanur Rahman|Managing Director Remuneration 525,000 -
Sub-Total 1,375,000 1,515,000
B) Disclosure of Managerial Remuneration
The total amount of remuneration paid to the top six salaried officers of the company in the accounting year
SL No Name Designation 30 June 2022| 30 June 2021
1 Md.Selim Parvez L.L.B,FCS | Company Secretary 720,000.00 -
2 Md.AKM Azharul Islam DGM([AdmiIn) 847,560 847,560
%) Md.Akhtaruzzaman DGM (Mechanical & Productiol 1,403,400 1,403,400
4 Md.Jalal Uddin CFO (Acting) 508,200 508,200
5 Md.Khalilur Rahman Head of Internal Audit 175,000 -
6 Md.Sharif Abu Bakar Head of Internal Audit 243,608 383,328
Sub-Total 3,897,748 3,142,488
(A+B) Aggregated amount of remuneration paid to all Directors and Officers during the accounting year is as
follows:
SL No Particulars Nature of payment 30 June 2022| 30 June 2021
1 Directors Board Meeting Fees 532,400 320,000
2 Directors Remuneration 1,375,000 1,515,000
3 Officers and Executives | Salary and other allowances 3,897,768 3,142,488
Total 5,805,148 4,977,488
37.00 Plant Installed Capacity and Capacity Utilization
Figure in MT
Particulars Capacity of Production Achlevement
2021-2022 2020-2021 2021-2022 2020-2021
Spinning (Ring 2443.88 2443.88 1773.03 3.49
Rotor 96.62 96.62 10.93 1.36
38.00 Capital Expenditure Commitment
There was no capital expenditure commitment as on June 30, 2022
39.00 Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets
39.01 Both contingent liability as well as contingent assets are existing in relation to interest on unsettied Long Term

Loan, Bank Overdraft and Special Fund Deposit with Agrani Bank Ltd., Ishurdi Branch, Mabna, as stated under
Note No. 14 & 22 above.

Position of these liabilities/assets as per claims raised both by Agrani Bank Ltd. and by the company.

Partic

ulars

Claim lodged by Agrani Bank Ltd. for Long term loan
Less Long term loan liability acknowledged by company

Sub-total

Claim lodged by Agrani Bank Ltd. for Short term locan
Less Short term loan liability acknowledged by company

Sub-total
Total Contingent Liability

Contingent
Liabilities plus
interest
(Claimed by
the Bank)
(Tk.)
289,847,501
(139.123,633)

150,723,848
77674359

(18,772,080)
58,902,279
209,626,147

The claimed amount as mentioned above had been fixed as on 20 November 2013. However the claimed
amount lodged by the bank as on balance sheet date may be enhanced by interest.
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It is mentionable that there was another claim of the Company with janata Insurance Company Lid.for
Tk.2,00C,329 since 1998 which has been settled on receipt of payment as on 5-4-2017 anc duly accounted
for.

39.02 Tax returns for the financial years 2013-14, 2014-15,2015-2016 and 2016-2017 have been submitted and us oer
tax law assessment suppose to be completed but the assessment order not yet received .As per previous
practice the tax as demanded by the tax authority is to some extent higher than the tax provision. Based on
such practice it may be assumed that there may remaine some scope of contingent liability.

39.03 A case is pending with the Honourable Judge Court filed by the company in the year 2014 no.C5 dated
12.01.2014 against Agrani Bank Limited of amounting Tk. 4.375,567,140.83 for damage and compensation
bearing for not allowing to sale pledged yarn and to use pledged raw cotton and other matericils for
production. For this reason, the company incurred losses and subsequently fied case against the tbank 1o
compensate for the damage and losses.

40.00 There was no bank guarantee issued by the company on behalf of their directors or the company itself
except bank loan.
41.00 a) No expenses were incurred or paid in foreign currencies.
b) No other income was earned or received in foreign curencies excepl as stated above.

42.00 Commussion, Brokerage or Discount against Sales
No commission, brokerage and discount was incurred or paid to the sales agent.

43.00 Events after Reporting Period:
Subsequent to the Statement of Financial Position date, the board of Directors recommended in it's meeting
held on 27.10.2022 for payment of 3% Cash Dividend for distribution at the end of the year 2022 wnich i
subject to the approval of the shareholders ensuing 40th Annual General Meeting of the company

44.00 Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part il of the Companies Act, 1994 and

DSE's requirement under Annexure 10 of Schedule A-Para-18 of The Dhaka Stock Exchange {listing)
Regulations, 2015

Compliances are shown in Annexure-1 & 2 herewith this report.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27.10.2022 and were signed cn iis
behalf by:

—RIman.

Company Secfetary Managthg Director & CEO Director

45’/27@ ‘s

Md. Abdur Rasnid, FCA (EnT7=
Partne:

Dated: October 30, 2022 FAMES & R
Place: Dhaka Chartered Accountants

DVC: 221030047 4A5842755

e
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Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd.

Schedu'z of Property, Plant & Equipment as on 30 June, 2022
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Schedule-1
COST DEPRECIATION
Amount on Accu.dep. up
SL Name of Assets Cost as on W.D.Vason Rev. of Add. during Adjustment Total Cost Dep.upto | Adjustment| which Dep.io | Rate Dep.during }o W.D.Vason
be

No 1/7/2021 1/7/2021 Fixed Assets the year the year 3Ny 1/7/2021 calculated (%) the year 30/6/2022 30/6/2022
1 |2 3 4 5 [} 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
1 [tand 8,684,686 8,684,686 - < 8.684,686 - - 8,684,686 - 8,684.686
2 [Land & Land Development 794,616 50.055 - 794,616 744,561 50,055 7 3.503 748,064 46,552

Sub fotal - A 9.479.302 8,734,741 - - 9,479,302 744,561 8,734,741 3,503 748,064 8,731,238

B |[Bullding & Other Const.
1 [Factory building (1sf class) 482,437 658 - 482,437 481,779 658 10 65 481,844 593
2 [Factory building [2nd class) 1,014,386 883 - 1.014.386 1.013.503 883 10 88 1,013,591 795
3 |Residential Bullding(Officer) 2135817 46,745 - 14,415 2,121,402 2.089.071 32331 10 3.233 2,092,304 29.098
4 [Residential Building(Worker) 1,054,347 21,828 233,809.00 20,191 1,267,965 1,032,519 235446 10 8.028 1,040,547 227.418
5 [Ofticer Euilding 712,703 15,539 - 7.374 705.329 697.164 - B.165 10 816 £97.980 7.349
6 |Otner Buildings 1,476,783 33,492 30,981 1,445,802 1,443,291 = 2,511 10 251 1,443,542 2,260
7 [Water Installation 144,752 3.736 - 144,752 141016 3,736 10 373 T41,389 3.363
8 {beclric Installation 298,311 3.992 - 298.311 294,319 - 3.992 10 399 294,718 3,593
7 |Other Construction(1st class) 352,762 8,147 £ 352,962 344,815 = 8,147 10 814 345,629 7.333
T0 [Ofher Consfruction(Temp ] 302,960 10,484 9,698 293,262 292,476 - 788 10 78 292,554 708

[T [Celing and Parition (Fact. U-T) 267,050 13.595 - 267,050 253.455 - 13,595 10 1.359 254.814 12,236
12 [Staff Quarter [ 2nd Class) 296,261 14.912 - 296,261 281,349 - 14912 10 1.491 ~ 282.840 13,421
13|Central Godown 897,532 47,715 - 897.532 849.817 - 47,715 10 4,771 854,588 42,944
T4]Building & Other Consiruction 27,251,239 9.224.232 - 27,251,239 18.027.007 - 9,224,232 5 461,211 18.488.218 8.763.021
15] Generatfor House 3.782.922 853.580 - 3,782,922 2.929.342 = 853,580 10 85,358 3.014,700 768222
16 [Pump Installation 672,206 124,458 - 672,206 547.748 - 124,458 10 12.445 560.193 112013
17 | Distribution Panel Board 1.700.568 262,422 - 1,700,568 1,438,146 - 262.422 10 26,242 1,464,388 236,180
18 [Cable Installation 3016014 494,521 = 3,016,014 2,521,493 - 494,521 10 49,452 2,570,945 445,069
19 |Elecinc Digilal Meter Room 1,080,253 516,682 1,080,253 563.571 - 516,682 10 51.668 615,239 465,014
20 [Staff Quarter 369.471 42,619 - 369.471 326,852 = 42,619 10 4,261 3311013 38,358
21 [Elechical Insiallation 287,523 69,968 - 287,523 217.555 B 69,968 10 6,996 224,551 62,972
22 [Electric Sub Station 5,371,588 591.025 < - 5,371,588 4,780,563 591,025 10 59,102 4,839,665 531,923
23[Other Cons.(Ducting) 21,915 45,665 - - 21,915 46,250 45,665 5 2,283 48,533 43,382
24 [Celling and Partition (Fact.U-2) 1,507,838 235,823 - 1,907,838 1,672,015 235823 10 23,582 1,695,597 212,241
25 [Humidification Plant 10,222,371 1,306,527 - 10,222,371 8.915844 E 1,306,527 10 130,652 9,046,496 1.175875
26|Scale 444,228 60,746 - - 444,228 383,482 60,746 10 6,074 389,556 54,672
27 [Switch Board Room 221,010 97.781 - 221,010 123,229 97.781 10 9.778 133,007 88,003
28 H/O Interior Decoration 1,235,075 69.551 - - 1,235.075 1,165,524 69.551 25 17,387 1,182,911 52,164

Sub Total B 67,090,522 14,217,327 - 233,809.00 82,659.00 67,241,472 52,873,195 14,368,477 948,257 53,841,452 13,400,220
C [Plant & Machinery:
T [Piant and Machinery 2,265,254 6,904 2,265,254 2.258.350 6,904 15 1.035 2,259,385 5869
2 [Evaluaticn Unit 400.000 22.526 400,000 377.474 22,526 25 5.631 383,105 16.895
3 |Workshop Mach.Equipment 5825 32 5825 5793 32 15 5 5798 27
4 |Power House Machinery 538,778 21,905 538,778 516873 21.905 15 3.285 520,158 16,620
5 |Fire Fighling Equipment 58,345 2,610 58,345 55,735 2.610 15 39 56,126 2219
6 1 Office equipment 506.875 2.287 506,875 504,593 2,282 15 342 504,935 1,940
7 ITransport equipment 1.630 18 1.630 1,612 18 15 3 1,614
A N
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_ COST “DEPRECIATION
Amount on Acci.dep. up
SL Name of Assels Cost as on W.D.V as on Rev. of Add. during Adjustment Total Cost Dep. up to | Adjustment| which Dep. io | Rate Dep.during 16 W.D.V as on
be
No 1/7/2021 1/7/2023 Fixed Assefs the year the year 3 1/7/201 calcvicled (%) the year 30/6/2022 30/4/202z
1|2 3 4 5 ] 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
8 [Loose 1ooic 291.356 7.365 - - 291,356 283,951 - 7.365 15 1,104 285,095 6,281
9 |Labcratory Appliances 417,546 20.533 617,946 597,413 20,533 15 3,079 600,492 17,454
10 | Electronic Twist Tester 190,000 112,309 - 190,000 77,691 112,309 15 16,846 94,537 95,463
11 |Plant & fAachinery 234,549,024 20,495,085 99,000.00 234648024 | 214,053,939 20.594.085 15 3,074,262 217128 201 17.519.823
12 | Gas Cenerator 23,304,127 3.749.993 - 23,304,127 19.554,134 E 3,749,993 10 374,999 19.929.132 3.274.994
13| Gas Generator Overhauling 10,195,347 411.419 10,195,347 9.7683.928 411,419 30 123,425 9.907.353 287.9%4
14 Cooling Tower 1,188,843 236,181 - 1,183,843 952,662 236,181 20 47,236 999,898 168.945
151 Al Compigssor Machine 3,427 %93 1,725.907 11.500.00 3,439,495 1.702.086 = 1,737,407 10 173,070 1873.15¢ 1,564,137
16 | Grinding Mochine 1,649,034 212,559 - 1,649,034 1,436,475 212,559 10 21,255 1,457,730 191.304
17 |boiler Insiallation 886.365 102,659 - 886,365 763,706 - 102.659 10 10,265 793971 92.394
18 | Laborafory Appliances 250,410 15,619 T 250,410 234,791 - 15,619 20 3123 237914 12.496
JB Testing Lab. Machine 1,572,488 342,979 - 13.700.00 1,586,188 1,229,509 356,679 10 35325 1,244,624 321,354
20 [water Trearment Flant 1,000,000 147.549 - - 1,000,000 852,451 147,549 10 14,754 E&7.205 132,795
21 |Gas Pipe line with stalion 3,526,003 438,247 - - 3,526,003 3.087.756 - 438,247 10 43,824 3131.580 374,423
22 linstaliation of EvC meter 380,314 272,895 380.314 107,419 = 272,895 10 27,289 134,708 245,606
23 | Fire righting Equipment 287,295 69,891 287.295 217,404 67,6891 10 46,989 204,373 62,902
24 | Other Machinety 334,603 €1,350 - - 334,603 273,253 - 61,350 10 6,135 279,238 55,215
Sub Tetal C 287,427,855 26,478,817 124,200 - 287,552,055 258,949,038 = 28,603,017 3,993,472 242,942,710 24,609,345
[ D [Mofor vehicles: =
1 |Motor Car 3,698,097 1,423,097 - 3,698,097 2.275.000 1,423,097 20 284,619 2 559,619 1,138,478
Sub Totai - D 3,698,097 1,423,097 - 3,498,097 2,275,000 - 1,423,097 264,419 2,529,419 1,120,478
E [Furniture & Fixtures:
1 [Furniture (Factory ) 123,622 26,382 25,000 148,622 96.740 51,882 10 4,146 100.886 47,736
2 |Fumiture {Office ) 1,102,849 209.487 = 1,102,849 893.362 209,487 10 20,948 914310 183,539
3 |School Furniture 9.509 298 - 9,509 9.211 298 10 29 9.240 269
4 |lron Safe 21,900 15,452 21,900 6,448 15,452 10 1.545 7.993 13,907
5 | Air Conditioner 841,923 48,147 841,923 793776 48,147 20 9.629 803.405 38,518
6 |Office Equipment 129,106 46,548 - 129,106 82.558 46,548 10 4.454 87.212 41,894
7 [Furniiure (Residential) 149.597 12,685 & 149,597 136,912 12,685 20 2.537 139,449 10,148
BEREERS 2,378,504 359,49% 25,000 - 2,403,504 2,019,007 384,499 43,458 2,062,495 M40
F 1Sundry Assets
1 {bocks 38,784 5,792 - 38,784 32,992 5792 20 1,158 34,150 4,634
[ 7 |Crockeries & Culleries 105,745 3,529 105,745 102214 3,529 20 705 102,921 282
3 1St Fonmishing 73.056 &.776 - 73,036 66,260 8,776 15 1.014 67,276 5.76C
4 {arns and Aramunatiorn 6.991 8 6,971 6,983 8 15 3 6,991 S
5 [Radio. fransistor, T.V & Lish 228.21% 2,548 - 228718 222,670 5,548 20 1.109 223,779 4,437
& [Games & Sporls Equipnient 5072 B B 5072 5072 - 20 : 5072 -
7 [frtercom sysient 556,025 14,833 N 55¢,025 541.392 14,633 20 252 17,737 |
& |Gther Sunidry Assets 333.797 79.982 < 333,797 253815 79982 10 7.978 /1,984
9 [Bi-Cyvcle £.4B6 - - 6,486 4,486 - 20 -
1G [Computer 1 401,050 76122 235.381.00 1.836 431 1,524,928 311,503 30 44,275 1
[ 77 [rax Machine 92,000 1,952 GIO00 $0.043 R 20 90
17 15ign Board 2,108 - 2! 2,108 - 20 -
TTZikchngerator 8715 2,046 - €715 54,645 1,066 20 IEER




FAMES & R
Chartered Accountants

COSr DEFRECIATION
Amount on Accu.dep. up
SL Name of Assets Cost as on W.D.V as on Rev. of Add. during Adjustment Total Cost Dep. upto | Adjusiment| which Dep.to | Rate Dep.during "o W.D.Vason
be
No 1/7/201 1/7/2021 Fixed Assets the year the year NNy 1/7/2021 calculated (%) the year 30/6/2022 30/4/2022
1 |2 3 4 5 & 7 8 7 10 1 12 13 14 15
14 |Virtual meeting equipment - - - 151.000.00 151,000 - 151.000 20 15,100 15,100 135,900
15 |Water Tank 11.020 145 - 11.020 10.875 - 145 20 29 10,904 116
76 [Telephone Installation 86.330 28,010 - - 86,330 58.320 - 28.010 20 5,602 63,922 22,408
17 |C.C.Camera 389,183 159,455 - 62,200 - 451,383 229.728 - 221,655 25 51,522 281,250 170,133
18 [Router 6,750 Bb4 = 20,000 - 26,750 5,886 - 20,864 25 3.549 .435 17,315
19 [Mobile Set 412,135 42,537 - 196,070 - 608,205 369.598 - 238,607 20 20,688 390,286 217,919
20 |Computer Printer : E 54,250 - 54,250 = 54,250 20 1,430 1,430 52.820
21 [Maike 6,958 73 - - - 6.958 6.885 - 73 20 15 6,900 58
22 |Tally Software - - - 109.524 109.524 - 109,524 10 - - 10%.524
Overhauling for:- -
21 |Carding Machine 2,255,679 191,041 B . = 2,255,679 2,064,638 = 191.041 40 76,416 2,141,054 114,625
227 |Drawing Frame Machine T.57T.957 178,378 - - - T.571%52 T.395.574 = 176378 40 70.551 1.466.125 105,827
23 [Savio Auto Cone Machine 10,454,532 1,141,063 - 3,049,309 - 13,503,841 9.313.46% - 4,190,372 35 399.372 9.712,841 3.791.000 '
24|Gas Generator 730,268 124,261 - 2,480,763 - 3,211,031 606,007 - 2,605,024 40 1,485,637 2,091,644 1,119,387 i
25Simplex Machine 255816 32,048 - - - 255816 223,768 g 32,048 40 12,819 236,587 19,229
[ [SubTofal - F T, 288,50 | 2,094,783 - T I5TAYT - 75347147 T7 193357 B g452, 2,703, T3700 | 39T, [ 3,247,538 |
% 26 |Gas Generator Major Overhauling 14,981,141 4,690,381 - - 14,981,141 10,290,760 - 4,690,381 [3m.sim 3,087,228 13,377,988 1,603,153
27 [Carding Machine 451,444 158,008 - - 451,444 293,436 - 158,008 | 20 90,288 | 383.724 67.720
28 |Drawing Frame Machine 1,257.961 775743 - - 1,257,961 482,218 & 775,743 10 125,796 608.014 649 947
29 |Savio Auto Cone Machine 7,723,551 2,831,963 = - 7.723.551 4,891,588 - 2,831,963 20 1,544,712 6,436,300 1,287.251
Sub Total - G 24,414,097 8,456,095 - - - 24,414,097 15,958,002 - 8,454,095 - 4,848,024 20,804,024 3,608,071
Total 413,777,029 63,763,859 - 6,741,506 82,859 420,435,876 | 350,013,170 - 70,422,706 - 12,344,695 342,357,865 58,078,011
Rev. on Reserve of Fixed asset - - 9,908,433 - - - - G 828,626 - 9,079,807
Tofal qTI777,029 | 43,763,859 | 9708433 | 4,731,504 BZE5Y 10435876 | 350,013,170 - 70,422,708 3,773,301 382357885 | &7.157.818
Allocation of Depreclation
Dep.of Fixed Assets 11,874,565
Dep.on Rev. Of Fixed Assets 828,626
Administrative 470,130
Total 13,173,321

38
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ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LTD.
Ishurdi - Pcbna

. Depreciation Schedule of Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment
As at 30 June, 2022

FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants

Schedule-2
COsT Depreciation
SL Particulars Revaluation of | W.D.V. as on | Total Cost as Dep. Upto Dep.Tobe | Rateof | Dep.during | Accum.Dep. W.D.V
No Fixed Assets 1/7/2021 on 1/7/2021 1/7/2021 Calculated | Dep.(%) the year 30-6-2022 30-6-2022
1 2 3 4 5 [ 7 8 9 10 n
11 Land 1,554,675 1,554,675 1,584,675 - 1,554,675 - - - 1,554,675
2 | Land & Land Development 8,028,325 3.360,628 8,028,325 4,667,697 3,360,628 7 235,243 4,902,940 3,125,385
Sub total - A 9.583.000 4,915,303 9,583,000 4,667,697 4,915,303 235,243 4,902,940 4,680,06C
1 | Factory building (ist class) 579,852 145,571 579,852 434,281 145,571 10 14,557 448,838 131,014
2 | Factory building (2nd class) 779,355 195,656 779,355 583,699 195,656 10 19,565 603,264 176,091
3 | Rasidential Building{Officers) 3,705,574 1,044,564 3,705,574 2,459,010 1,046,564 10 104,656 2,763,666 941,908
4 | Residential Building{Workers) 1,730,289 488,685 1,730,285 1,241,604 488,685 10 48,868 1,290,472 439,817
5 | Officers Building 1,231,725 347,875 1,231,725 883,850 347,875 10 34,787 918,637 313,088
6 | Other Buildings 2,654,389 666,506 2,654,889 1,988,383 666,506 1C 66,650 2,055,033 599,856
7 | Water Installotion 81,511 23,018 81,511 58,493 23,018 10 2,301 60,794 20,717
8 | Electric Installution 316,4%2 89,386 316,492 227106 89,386 10 8,938 236,044 80,448
9 | Other Construction(1st class) 429,117 107,728 429,117 321,369 107,728 10 10,772 332,161 96,956
10 | Other Construction(Tem) 2,196 552 2,126 1,644 552 10 55 1,699 497
Sub Total - B 11,511,000 3,111,541 11,511,060 8,399,459 3.111.,541 311,149 8,710,608 2,800,392
1 | Plant and Machinery 3,811,231 510,227 3.811,231 3.301,004 510,227 15 76,534 3.377.538 433,693
2 | Workshop Mach.Equipment 343,159 48,643 343,159 294,516 48,643 15 7.296 301,812 41,347
31 Power Hause Machinary 4,697 905 645,925 4,697,705 4,031,980 665,925 15 99,888 4,131,868 566.037
4 | Fire Fighting Lquipment 127,507 19,203 127,507 108,304 19,203 15 2,880 111,184 16,323
5 | Medical & Office equipment 3,908.37 523,233 3,908,372 3,385,139 523,233 15 78,484 3,463,623 444,749
6 | Transport equipment 8,367 1,186 8,367 7.181 1,186 15 177 7.358 1,009
7 | L.oose Taols - 958,061 113,172 958,061 544,889 13,172 5 16,975 861,864 96,197
Sub Total - © 13,854,602 1,881,58¢% 13,854,402 11,973,013 1,881,589 282,234 12,255,247 1.599,355
Total (A+B+(2) u?f,948.602 9,908,433 34,948,602 25,040,169 9,908,433 828,626 25,848,795 9,079,807
, NG
* (1 nz,f

«
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Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd.
Schedule of Property, Plant & Equipments as on 30 June, 21

FAMES & R
Chartered Accountants

Schedule-1
COsT DEPRECIATION
St Name of Assets Eashasol W0 Vopsiol RZ\;C:::‘;::;O“ A:\:jr]i:;n Adpustmant] Toiol Coal ox Depc:::clquhon ARl :t:rl‘:‘r:"ll)ieopn Rate DdeuF:ir:;K::: " ADZ;?;;?;:?: W.D.V'gs ot
No 01.07.2020 01.07.2020 during the | at 30.06.2021 t during ' 30.056.2021
Assefs the period 01.07.2020. the period to be (%) perod as at
period 30.06.2021

A |land & Land Developments

1 |Land 8,684,686 8.684,686 - - 8,684,684 - - 8,684,686 - 8.684.686
2 |Land & Land Development 794,616 53,822 - - - 794616 740,794 - 53,822 7 3.767 744,561 50.055

Sub total - A 9,479,302 8,738,508 - - - 9,479,302 740,794 - 8,738,508 3,767 744,561 8,734,741

B |Buiiding & Other Const.

1 |Factory building {15t class) 482,437 731 - - - 482,437 481,706 - 731 10 73 481,779 658
2 |Factory building {2nd class) 1,014,386 981 - - - 1,014,386 1.013.405 - 981 10 i) 1.013,503 883
3 |Residential Building[Officer) 2,135,817 51,940 - - - 2,135,817 2,083,877 - 51,940 | 10 5,194 2,089,071 46,746
4 |Residential Building(Worker) 1,054,347 24,253 - - - 1,054,347 1,030,094 - 24,253 | 10 2,425 1.032,519 21,828
5 1Officer Building 712,703 17,265 - - 712,703 695,438 - 17,265 1 10 1.726 697.164 15,539
6 |Other Buildings 1,476,783 37.213 - - - 1,476,783 1.439.570 - 37,213 | 10 3.72] 1,443,291 33.472
7 |Water Instailation 144,752 4,151 - - - 144,752 140,601 - 4,151 10 415 141,016 3736
8 |Electric Installation 298,311 4,436 - - - 298,311 293,875 - 4,436 1 10 444 294.319 3,992
9 |Other Construction(1st class) 352,942 9,052 - - - 352,962 343.910 - 90521 10 905 344.815 8,147
10 | Other Construction(Temp.) 302,960 11,649 - - - 302,940 291311 - 11,649 | 10 1,165 292,476 10,484
11 |Ceiling and Partition (Fact. U-1) 267,050 15,105 - - - 267,050 251,945 - 15,105 | 10 1,510 253,455 13,595
12 IStaff Quarter { 2nd Class) 296,261 16,569 - - - 296,261 279,692 - 16,569 | 10 1,657 281,349 14,912
13 |Central Godown 897.532 53.017 - - - 897.532 844,515 - 53017 | 10 5.302 849,817 47.715
14 |Building & Other Construction 27,251,239 9.709.718 - - 5 27,251,239 17,541,521 - 9.709.718 S 485,486 18,027,007 9.224,232
15| Generator House 3,782,922 948,422 - - - 3,782,922 2,834.500 - 948,422 | 10 94,842 2,929,342 853.580
16 |Pump Installation 672,206 138,287 - - - 672,206 533.219 - 138,287 | 10 13.829 547.748 124,458
17 | Distribution Panel Board 1,700,548 291,580 - - - 1,700,568 1,408,988 = 291,580 | 10 29,158 1,438,146 262,422
18 |Cable Installation 2.016.014 549,468 - - = 3.016.014 2,466,546 - 549,468 | 10 54,947 2,521,493 494,521
19 | Electric Digital Meter Room 1,080,253 574,091 - - 1.080.253 506,162 - 574.091 10 57,409 563,571 516,682
20 | Staff Quarier 369.471 47.354 - - - 369.471 322,117 - 47,354 1 10 4,735 326,852 42,619
21 |Electical Installation 287.523 77.742 - - - 287,523 209.781 - 77,742 | 1C 7,774 217.555 69.968
22 |Electric Sub Station 5,371,588 656,694 - - - 5,371,588 4,714.894 - 656,694 | 10 65,669 4,780,563 591.025
23| Cther Cons.[Ducting! 21,915 48,068 - - - 91.215 43,847 - 48,068 S 2,403 46,250 45,665
24 [ Celing and Pariition (Fact.U-2} 1,907.838 262,026 - - - 1,907,638 1,645.812 - 262,026 | 10 26,203 1,672,015 235,823
25 |Humidification Plant 10,222,371 1,451,696 - - - 10,222,371 8.770.675 - 1,451,696 | 10 145,169 8.915.844 1,306,527
26 |Scale 444,228 67.496 - - - 444,228 376,732 - 67.4%6 | 10 6,750 383,482 60,746
27 | Switch Board Room 221,010 108,645 - - - 221,010 112,365 - 108.645 | 10 10.864 123,229 97.781
28 |H/O Interior Decoration 1,235.075 92,735 - - - 1,235,075 1,142,340 - 92,7351 25 23,184 1,165,524 69,551

Sub Total B 67,090,522 15,270,384 - - - 67,090,522 51,820,138 - 15,270,384 1,053,057 52,873,195 | 14,217,327

C |Plant & Machinery:

i |Plant and Machinery 2,265,254 1 8.122 - - 2,265,254 2,257,132 - 81224 15 1,218 2,258,350 6.904




16

FAMES & R
Chartered Accountants

COST DEPRECIATION
. 5 Revaluation | Addition 3 Depriciation ] Amount on Depriciation| Accumvulatad
:I; Name of Assets OCI?OS;'.;Z:OI \;3; 2(;;28' of Fixed during z?::;";::’ qr?;:;.g:;:];: as at A;’i;'::;:;" which Dep. {Rate| during the | Depreciation \;0%:;;;'
Assets the = 01.07.2020. to be (%) perod as at
period | PEf0 the period 30.06.2021
2 |Evaluction Unit . 400.000 30,034 - - 400.000 369,966 - 30.034 | 25 7.508 377.474 22,525
3 |Workshop Much.Equipment 5.825 37 - - - 5,825 5,783 37| 15 5 5.793 32
4 |Power House Machinery 538.778 25.770 - - - 538.778 513,008 - 25770 | 15 3.865 516.873 21.905
5 {Fire Fighting Equipment 58.345 3.070 - - - 58.345 55,275 - 3.070 | 15 460 55,735 2,610
6 | Office equipment 506,875 2,685 - - - 506.875 504.190 - 2685 | 15 403 504,593 2,282
7 |Transport equipment 1,630 21 - - - 1,630 1,609 - 21 15 3 1.612 18
g jloose Tools _ 291.356 8,665 - - - 251,356 282,691 - 8,665 | 15 1.300 283.991 7.365
9 |Laboratorv Appliances 617.944 24,156 - = 617.946 593,790 - 24,156 15 3,623 597.413 20,533
10 |Eiecironic Twist Tester 190,000 132,128 - - 190.000 57.872 132,128 | 15 19.819 77.691 112,309
11 |Plant & Machinery 234,549,024 24,111,864 - - = 234,549.024 210,437,140 - 24,111,864 15 3,616,779 214,053,939 20,495,085
12 |Gas Generaror 22,304,127 4,144,459 - - - 23,304,127 19,137,468 - 4,166,659 | 10 416,666 19,554,134 3,749,993
13 1Gas Generator Overhauling 10,195,347 587.741 - - 10,195,347 9,607,606 - 587.741 | 30 176,322 9.783,928 411,419
| 14 {Cooling Tower 1,188,843 295,224 - - - 1,188,843 893,617 - 295,226 | 20 59.045 952,652 235,181
151AIr Compressor Machine 3,427,993 1,917,674 - - - 3,427,993 1,510,319 - 1,917,674 10 191,767 1,702,086 1,725.907
14 |Grinding Machine 1,647,034 236,177 - - 1,649,634 1,412,857 - 236,177 | 10 23.618 1,436,475 212,559
17 |Roiler !nstallation 886.365 114,065 - - - 886.365 772,300 - 114065 | 10 11,406 783.706 102,559
18 |Laborciory Appliances 250,410 19.523 - 250,410 230,887 - 19,523 | 20 3.904 244,791 15,619
19 [Testing Lab. Machine 1,572,488 381,088 - - 1.572.488 1,191,400 - 381,088 | 10 38.109 1.229.509 342,979
20 {Water Treatrnent Plant 1,000,000 163,943 - - 1,000,000 836,057 - 163.943 10 16.394 852,451 147,549
21 |Gas Pipe line with station 3.526,003 485.941 - - 3.526.003 3.039.062 - 486.941 10 48,694 3.087.756 438,247
22 |insicliation of EVC meter 380.314 303.217 - 380.314 77.097 - 303217 | 10 30322 107,419 272,895
23 |Fire Fighting Equipment 287.295 77.657 - - - 287,295 209.638 - 77.657 | 10 7.766 217.404 69.891
24 |Other Machinery 334.603 68,167 - - - 334,603 266,436 - 68,167 | 10 6.817 273.253 61,350
Sub Total C 287,427,855 | 33,164,630 - - 287,427,855 | 254,263,225 - 33,164,630 4,685,813 | 258,949,038 | 28,478,817
D |Motor Vehicles:
1 1 |Moior Car 3.698,097 1,778,871 - - 3.698.097 1.919.224 - 1,778.871 | 20 355,774 2,275,000 1,423,097
Sub Totai - D 3,698,097 1,778,871 - - - 3,698,097 1,919,224 - 1,778,871 355,774 2,275.200 1,423,097
L [Furniture & Fixtures:
|__1_|Furniture: (Factory ) 123,622 29,859 - - 123,622 93,753 - 29869 | 10 2,987 76,740 26,882
2 (Furniture (Office ) 1,102,849 232,763 - - = 1,102,849 870,086 = 232,763 10 23,276 893,362 209,487
3 {school Furniture 9.509 331 - - - 9.509 ¢.178 - 331 10 33 9.211 298
4 liron Safe 21 9GO 17.16% - 21.900 4731 - 17,169 | 10 1.717 6.448 15,452
5 |Air Conditioner £841.923 60.183 | - - - 841,923 781.74u - 60,183 | 20 12,036 793,776 48,147
¢ |Cffice kquipment 129.108 51.7/20 - - 129,105 77,386 - 51,720 | 10 5.172 B2.558 46.543
J_ Furniture [Residenticl} 149 597 15,856 - - 149,597 133.741 - 15856 | 20 317 136.912 12,685
‘iSun Total - F _ 2,378,400 407.891 - - 2,378.506 1,970.615 - 407,891 48,392 2,019,007 359.499
£ |Sundry Assels | (—
1 |Books 38784 | 7240 - - 38.734 31 544 - 7.24C | 20 1,448 32,992 5792
7 iC es & Culleries 108,745 4,411 [ - 105,745 1 101.334 - 4411 | 20 882 152,216 3.5%%
L= & Ny
/ \‘_"\'/ - -_” i ,\\\\
{i‘ (c§ ka) *)\
{ ) »ll
NG\ /
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FAMES & R
Chartered Accountants

COSsT DEPRECIATION
Revaluation | Addition . Depriciation . Amount on Depriciafion| Accumulated
::‘) Name or Assets Oﬁc;)s;;;;; \:!%;I 2(:;2? of Fixed during z‘ﬂ::;";ﬁ:' ;?;c;‘g:;io;: as ot A;:Igu::ir:gen which Dep. |Rate| during the | Depreciation :’6%:;;2?‘
Assets the period 01.07.2020. the period to be (%) perod as at
period 30.06.2021
3 |Soft Furnishing 73,036 ZiRE) - - - 73,036 65,065 - 7.971 15 1,195 66,260 6,776
4 |Arms and Ammunation 6,991 8 - - - 6,991 6.983 - 8| 15 - 6,983 8
5 |Radio,Transistor,T.V & Dish 228,218 6,935 - - - 228,218 221,283 - 6935 | 20 1,387 222,670 5.548
¢ |Games & Sports Equipment 5,072 - - - - 5,072 5072 - - 20 - 5,072 -
7 |Intercom system 556.025 18,291 - - - 556,025 537.734 - 18291 | 20 3,658 541,392 14,633
8 |Other Sundry Assets 333,797 88,869 - - - 333.797 244,928 - 88862 [ 10 8,887 253.815 79.982
? |Bi-Cycle 6,486 - - - - 6,486 6,486 - - 20 - 6,486 -
10| Computer 1.578,810 83.330 - 22,240 - 1,601,050 1,495,480 = 105,570 | 30 29.448 1,524,928 76,122
11 |Fax Machine 92.000 2,440 - - - 92,000 89.560 - 2,440 | 20 488 90.048 1.952
12 [Sign Board 2,108 - - - - 2,108 2,108 - - 20 - 2,108 -
13 |Refrigerator 58,715 5,083 - - - 58,715 53,632 - 5083 | 20 1,017 54,649 4,066
14 [Water Tank 11.020 181 - - - 11,020 10,839 - 181 20 36 10,875 145
15 [Telephcne Installation 86,330 35012 - - 86,330 51,318 - 35012 {. 20 7.002 58.320 28,010
16|C.C.Camera 387,183 212,60/ - = - 389.183 176,576 = 212,607 | 25 53,152 229,728 159,455
17 |Router 6.750 1.152 - - - 6.750 5,598 - 1,152 | 25 288 5.886 864
18 [Mobile Set 412,135 53,171 - - - 412,135 358,964 - 53,171 [ 20 10,634 369.598 42.537
19 [Maike 6.958 91 - - - 6,958 6,867 - ?1 ] 20 18 6,885 73
Overhauling for:-
20 |Carding Machine 2,255,679 318,402 - - o 2,255,679 1,937,277 - 318,402 40 127,361 2,064,638 191,041
21 |Drawing Frame Machine 1,571,952 293.963 - - = 1,571,952 1,277,989 - 293.963 | 40 117,585 1,395.574 176.378
22 [Savio Auto Cone Machine 10.454,532 1,755,482 - - - 10,454,532 8.699.050 - 1,755,482 | 35 614,419 9,313,469 1,141,063
23 |Gas Generator 730,268 207,101 - - - 730.268 523.167 - 207,101 | 40 82,840 606.007 124,261
24 |Simplex Machine 255.816 53.414 - - - 255,816 202,402 - 53414 [ 40 21,366 223,768 32,048
Sub Total - F 19.266.410 3.155,154 - 22,240 - 19.288.650 16,111,256 - 3,177,394 1,083,111 17,194,367 2,094,283
25 | Gas Generator Major 14,981,141 7.777.609 - - 14,981,141 7,203,532 - 7.777.609 3,087,228 10,290.760 4,690.381
26 [Carding Machine 451,444 248,296 - - 451,444 203,148 - 248,296 | 20 90.288 293,436 158.008
27 |Drawing Frame Machine 1,257,961 901,539 - - 1,257,961 356.422 - 901,532 | 10 125,796 482.218 775.743
28 |Savio Auto Cone Machine 7,723,551 4,376,675 - - 7,723,551 3.344,876 - 4,376,675 | 20 1,544,712 4,891,588 2,831,963
Sub Total - G 24,414,097 13,304.11¢ - - - 24,414,097 11,109,978 - 13,304,119 | - 4,848,024 15,958,002 8,456,095
Total 413,754,789 75,819,557 - 22,240 - 413,777,029 | 337,935,232 - 75,841,797 | - 12,077,938 | 350,013,170 | 63,763,859
Rev. on Reserve of Fixed asset - - 10,839,153 - - - - - 930,720 - 9,908,433
Total 413,754,789 | 75,819,557 | 10,839,153 [ 22,240 - 413,777,029 | 337,935,232 - 75,841,797 13,008,658 | 350,013,170 | 73,672,292

Allocation of Depreciafion

Factory Overhead:

Dep.of Fixed Assets 11,549,929
Dep.on Rev. Of Fixed Assets 930,720
Administrative 528,009

Total 13,008,658
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Schedule-2
COST Depreciation
SL Parliculars Revaluation of | W.D.V. as on | Total Cost as | Dep. Upto | Dep.To be [Rate of | Dep.during | Accum.Dep. wW.D.V
No Fixed Assets 1/7/2020 cn 1/7/2020 1/7/2020 | Calculated [Dep.{%)| the year 30/06/2021 | 30/06/2021
] 2 3 4 5 [ 7 8 9 10 11
1 Land 1,554,675 1,554,675 1,554,675 - 1.554,675 - - - 1,554,675
? i Land & Land Development 8,028,325 3.613,578 8,028,325 4,414,747 3,613,578 7 252,950 4,667,697 3,360,628
Sub total - A 9,583,000 5,168,253 $.583,000 4,414,747 5,168,253 252,950 4,667,697 4,915,303
1 Factory building {1st classj 579,852 141,744 579,852 418,106 161,746 10 16,175 434,281 145,571
2 | Factory building (2nd class) 779,355 217,395 779,355 561,960 217,395 10 21,739 583,699 195,656
3 Residential Building(Officers) 3,705,574 1,162,849 3,705,574 2,542,725 1,162,849 10 116,285 2,659,010 7,046,564
4 | Residential Building{Workers) 1,730,289 542,983 1,730,289 1,187,306 542,983 10 54,298 1,241,604 438,685
5 COfficers Building 1,231,725 386,528 1,231,725 845,197 386,528 10 38,653 883,850 347,875
6 | Other Buildings 2,654,889 740,562 2,654,889 1,914,327 740,562 10 74,056 1,988,383 466,506
7 Water Instaliation 81,511 25,575 81,511 55,934 25,575 10 2,557 58,493 23.018
8 | Electric Instailation 316,492 99,318 316,492 217,174 99.318 10 $,932 227,106 29.386
9 | Other Construction{lst class) 429117 119,698 . 429117 309,419 119,698 10 11,970 321,389 107,728
10 | Other Construction(Tem) 2,196 513 2,196 1,583 613 1 61 1,644 552
Sub Total - B 11,511,000 3,457,267 | 11,511,000 8,053,733 3,457,267 345,726 8,399,459 3.111,541
BE Plant and Machinsry 3,811,231 600,267 3.811,231 3,210,964 600,267 15 90,040 3,301,004 510,227
2 | Workshop Mach.Equipment 343,159 57,227 343,159 285,932 57,227 15 8,584 294,515 48,543
3 | Power House Machinery 4,697,905 783,441 4,697,905 3,914,464 783,441 15 - 117,516 4,031,98C 665,925
4 Fire Fighting Equipment 127,507 22,592 127,507 104,915 22,592 15 3,389 108,304 19,203
5 | Medical & Office equipment 3.908,372 615,568 3,908,372 3,292,804 615,568 15 92,335 3,385,139 523,238 |
6 | Transport equipm:ent 8.357 1,365 8,367 6.572 1,355 i 209 7.181 1,186
7 | Loose Tools 58,061 133,143 958,061 824918 133,143 15 19.971 844,839 113,172
Sub Total - C 13,854,602 2,213,633 . 13,854,602 | 11,640,969 2,213,833 332,044 | 11,973,013 1,881,569
Total - {A+BIC) . -34,948,602 10,839,153 | 24,543,602 | 24,109,447 | 10,837,153 930,720 | 25,040.16%
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ANNEXURE-1
Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule X|, Part Il of the Companies Act, 1994:
A. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule X1, Part Il, Para-3, Note 4 (i) and (ii)
Employees position of the company as at 30 June, 2022:
Salary (Monthly) Officer & Stoft Total

X Worker Employees
Factory Head Office

Aggregate remuneration for the year Tk. 36,000/- and 1 3 - 4
Aggregate remuneration for the year below Tk. 36,000/- 29 13 329 371
Total 30 16 329 375

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 3:
Compliance status of disclosure of

Fixa Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 3
3{i)(a) The turnover Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 25
3(i)(b) t Commission paid to the selling agent Not Applicable
Brokerage and discount on sales, other than the usual Not Applicable
3(i)(c) trade discount.
The value of the raw materials consumed, giving item Complied -Disclosed in Note No-
3 (d)(i) wise breakup as possible. 5.01
- . The opening and closing stocks of goods produced.  Complied -Disclosed in Note No-
3(i) () (ii) 5.03
3(i)(e) In the case of trading companies, the purchase made i
and the opening and closing stocks. Not applicable
3(i)(f) In the case of companies rendering or supplying -
services, the gross income derived from services Not Applicable
3(i)(g) Opening and closing stocks, purchases and sales and
consumption of raw materials with value and quantity Complied -Disclosed in Note No-
break-up for the company, which falls under cne or 501
more categories i.e. manufacturing and/or trading.
3(i)(h) In the case of other companies, the gross income .
derived under different heads. Rt Applicatic
3(i) (i) Work-in-progress, which have been completed at the Complied- Disclosed in Note No-
commencement and at the end of the accounting 5.02
v
36 Provision for depreciation, renewals or diminution in Complied -Disclosed in Schedule
value of fixed assets. No- 1-2
3(i) (k) Interest on the debenture paid or payable to the .
Managing Director, Managing Agent and Manager. Not Appliccble
3(i) (1) Charge of income tax and other taxation on profits. Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 3i
3{i){m) Revised for repayment of share capital and repayment i
of loans Not Applicable
3(n) (i) Amount set aside or proposed to be set aside, to
reserve, but not including provisions made to meet any .
specific liability, contingency or commitment, know to Not Appli.:able
exist at the date as at which the balance sheet is made
Hn
3(i) (n) (i) Amount withdrawn from above mentioned reserve Not Applicaple
3l o) (i) Amount set aside to provisions made for meeting .
Sy 3 q 2 Not Applicable
specific liabilities, contingencies of commitments.
3li) (o) (i) Amount withdrawn from cbove mentioned provisions,

as no longer required. Not Applicable
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3(i){p) Expenciture incurred on each of the following items.
separately for each item: (i} Consumption of stores and
spare parts (i) Fower and Fuel (i) Rent (iv) Repairs of
Buildings (v) Repairs of Machinery {vi) (1) Salaries, wages
and bonous (2) Contribution to provident and other

Compilied -Disclosed in Noie From
26.01 to 26.04, 27, 28 and in Income

tort $
funds (3} Worksmen and staff welfare expenses to the Sicemen
extent not adjusted from ary previous provision or
reserva.
B. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule Xi, Part Il, Para 4.
Payment/Perquisites to Directors & Managers
Complied and Disclosed in Schedule 36.
C. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 7:
Details of production capacity utilization:
2021-2022
’ license Installed Actuai .
Parficulars Capacity (In Capacity (In Production Sf‘l’h‘;g:g
MT) MI {In MT)
Arnual production capacity in Spinning (R/Frame) 2,282.28 2,443.88 1,631.72 67.59%
MT (Average 32/1 count) Rofor 258.19 96.62 2592 26.83%
2020-2021
license Installed Actual
Particulars Capacity (In Capacity (In Production S;;E:::::
M) M) (I MTY -
Annual production capacity in Spinning (R/Frame) 2,282.28 2,443 88 16.00 0.40%
MT (Average 32/1 count) Rotor 258.19 96.62 3.00 3.10%
D. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 8 (C) :
Raw materials, spare parts, packing materials and capital machinery:
% of
Total Purchase " consumption
llems (8DY) Consumption (BDT) of fotal
purchase
Raw materials 325,157,538 254,086,962 78.14%
Spare parts 13,179,535 7,956,962 60.41%
Packing material 4,148,339 3,678,816 88.68%
Total 342,476,412 265,722,740
Value of export:
Pariculars In foreign currencies (US$) In BDT Not applicable as ine
Exporl NIL NIL Company has ot
exported any
Total 5 3

comodities.

i) The company has not incurred any expenditure in foreign currencies for the period from 01 Fily, 2021 1o 20
June, 2022 on cccount of royalty, know-how, professional fees, consultancy fees and interest:

i) The cornpany has not earned any foreian exchanges for royalty, know-row, professional fees, consulicncy
fe=s and interest;
i) The Company has not remitted any foreign currencies on account of dividend.
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Annexure-2

Disclosure as per DSE's requirement of Annexure-10 of Schedule-A, Para-18

Ratio Analysis

2017-2018 | 2018-2019 | 2019-2020 | 2020-2021 | 2021-2022
A) |Liquidity/Solvency Ratios:
1) |Current ratio 2.55:1 1.48:1 1.46:1 1.49:1 1.60:1
2) |Quick ratio 1.73:1 0.93:1 1.10:1 1.32:1 1.22:1
3) |Times Interest Earned Ratio NA NA NA NA NA
4) |Debt to Equity Ratio 1.31:1 3.22:1 3.61:1 3.54:1 3.39:1
5) |Bad debt Ratio NA NA NA NA NA
B) |Operating Ratios:
1) I;"-‘::tti:cc’:unts receivable Turnover NA NA NA NA NA
2) |Inventory Turnover Ratio 2.23 0.56 0.51 1.14:1 2111
3) |Asset Turn over Ratio 0.65 0.27 0.28 0.45 0.89
C) |Profitability Ratios:
1) |Gross Margin Ratio 6.69% (28.23)% (30.45)% (5.63)% 12.13%
2) |Operating Income Ratio (0.83%) (53.15%) | (52.45%) | (16.54)% 7.45%
3) [Net Income Ratio 3.72% (44.42%) (22.06%) 3.78% 5.77%
4) |Return on Assets Ratio 1.67% (4.75%) (2.38%) 0.66% 2.18%
5) |Return on Equity Ratio 3.85% (20.06% (10.96% 3.00% 9.54%
8) oo macang cashlowtoNet | (eq 97)4 | (420.08%) | (248.53%) | 1434.44% | (403.01)%
7) |Earning per Share 48 -1.88 (0.93) 0.26 0.91
D) [Stockholder Ratios:
1) |Price/Earnings (P/E) Ratio 163.13 -41.62 (84.48) 166.21 131.36
2) |Dividend yield Ratio - - - - -
3) |Dividend Payout Ratio - - - % .
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Alhaj Textile Mills Limited
Dividend Distribution Policy

Background and applicability
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) requires the listed companies to disclose Dividend
Distribution Policy.

This document, adopted by the Board of Directors of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited, lays down the Dividend
Distribution Policy ("the Policy") of the Company.
The Policy is subject to review as and when considered appropriate by the Board.

Dividend Distribution Philosophy

The Company believes in long term value creation for its shareholders while maintaining the desired liquidity
and leverage ratios and protecting the interest of all the stakeholders including customers, debtors, suppliers,
employees and the Government. Accordingly, the focus will continue to be on sustainable returns in terms of
dividend, in consonance with the dynamics of business environment.

Dividend
Dividend represents the profit of the Company, which is distributed to shareholders in proportion to the amount
paid-up on shares they hold. Dividend includes Interim Dividend.

Circumstances under which shareholders can expect Dividend

The Board will assess the Company's financial requirements, including its growth opportunities and other
pertinent factors for the purpose of considering dividend. The dividend for any financial year shall ordinarily
be paid out of the Company profits for that year in terms of the regulatory provisions. If circumstances require,
the Board may also declare dividend out of accumulated profits of any previous financial year(s) in accordance
with regulatory provisions, as applicable.

Interim and Final Dividend
The Board may declare one or more Interim Dividends and recommend Final Dividend for the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Financial parameters and other internal and external factors to be considered for declaration of

dividend

e Distributable surplus available as per the Companies Act, Listing Regulations and other applicable
regulations and directives.

e The Company's liquidity position and future cash flow needs.

e Track record of Dividends distributed by the Company.

e Pay-out ratios of comparable companies.

e Prevailing taxation policy and legal requirements with respect to Dividend distribution

e (Capital expenditure requirements.

e Stipulations/ Covenants of loan agreements, if any.

e Macro-economic and business conditions in general.

e Any other relevant factor that the Board may deem fit to consider.

Utilization of retained earnings

Subject to applicable Regulations, the Company's retained earnings may be applied for:

e Organic growth needs including working capital, capital expenditure, repayment of debt, etc.
e Inorganic growth needs such as acquisition of businesses, establishment of joint ventures, etc.

e Buyback of shares subject to applicable limits. 97



e Payment of Dividend in future years.
e Issue of Bonus shares.
e Any other permissible purpose.

Circumstances under which the shareholders may not expect dividend

In line with the Dividend Distribution Philosophy, there may be certain circumstances under which the

shareholders may not expect dividend, including:

e The Company has sufficient avenues to generate significantly higher returns on surplus than what a
common shareholder can generate himself.

e In case of utilization of retained earnings as mentioned in this Policy.

e The Company has incurred losses or there is inadequacy of profits.

Modification of the Policy
The Board may modify this policy from time to time at its discretion or in line with any amendment made in
the Act or applicable Regulations.

Disclaimer
This document does not solicit investments in the Company's securities, nor is it an assurance of guaranteed
returns (in any form), for investments in the Company's shares.
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' ( - Alhaj Textile Mills Limited

66, Dilkusha C/A (4™ Floor), Dhaka-1000

"."'."J.rp
PROXY FORM
I/WVE.....o bRt of
............................................................................................................................................................................... being
a member of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited do hereby appoint Mr/MS. ........c.oieriiieeeeese s

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 40t Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Tuesday, 27 December 2022 at 11:30 a.m. under Digital Platform and at any adjournment
thereof.

Name of Name of

Shar€hOIdEr ... 2 (0

No. of Shares Signature of

NEIG. ..t s o (0) T

Folio DAt .
NO .ttt

Revenue Stamp
Taka 20.00

BoaCNe. | | | [ | [ | [ [ [ [ [ [ | [ [ |

Signature of SharehOlder..............ccvirririreeeee s Cellirttieiieeee e

Signature Verified

Authorized signatory

Note:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote
in his/herbehalf. The Proxy Form, duly stamped must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least
48 hours before the meeting.
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CORPORATE
COMPLIANCE

For the financial year 2021-2022

Publication of 1% Qtr. Financial Report
14™ November 2021

Publication of 2" Qtr. Financial Report
27™ January 2022

Publication of 3¢ Qtr. Financial Report
i 27%™ April 2022

Dividend Recommended
27%" October 2022

Audited Financial Report to
BSEC and DSE
08" November 2022 Ja

Record Date for 40" AGM
215 November 2022

Notice of 40t AGM
06™" December 2022

40™ Annual General Meeting
27" December 2022

Dividend Payable
By 26™ January 2023
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